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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of PB Fintech Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consoclidated Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consclidated financial statements of PE Fintech Limited (‘the Holding
Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as 'the Group')
and its associates, as listed in Annaxure |, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Consalidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information and
other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of the reparts of the other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial
information of the subsidiaries and associates, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act, read
with the Companies {Indian Accounfing Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associates, as at March 31, 2025, and
their consalidated profit (including other comprehensive income), consclidated cash flows and the consolidated
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinlon

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143{(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Cansolidated Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Group and its
associates in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (1CALY)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
sbtained together with the audit evidence obtained by the ather auditors in terms of their reports referred to in
paragraph 17 of the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the members of PB Fintech Limited on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 (Cont'd)

Emphasis of Matters

4. In relation to the matter described in Note 40 to the accompanying consclidated financial statements, the
following Emphasis of Matter paragraph included in audit report of the financial statements of Policybazaar
Insurance Broker Private Limited, a whelly owned subsidiary of the Holding Company, audited by us, vide
our audit report dated May 14, 2025 which is reproduced by us as under:

We draw attention to Mote 40 to the consolidated financial statements, regarding management assessment
with respect to inspections of the books of accounts and records of Policybazaar Insurance Brokers Private
Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding or "Policybazaar’), carried out by the Insurance
Regulatary and Development Authority of India ("IRDAI") to examine compliance with relevant laws and
regulations for various financial years and submission of management responses in respect of the
inspection reports and show cause notices issued by IRDAL In view of the management, the above matters
are not likely to have a material impact on the continuing operations of Policybazaar and these consclidated
financial statements. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

5, In relation to the matter described in Moté 25 to the accompanying consclidated financial statements, the
following Emphasis of Matter paragraph included in audit report of the financial statements of Paisabazaar
Marketing and Consulting Private Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Holding Company, audited by
us, vide our audit report dated May 15, 2025 which is reproduced by us as under:

We draw attention to Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements, regarding the search and survey
proceedings carried out by the Directorate General of GST Intelligence and Income Tax Department, at the
premises of Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Halding Company or 'Paisabazaar’). Furthermore, Paisabazaar has also received notices fram the Income
Tax Department. The management after considering all the available information and basis legal opinion
phtained, is of the view that allegations against Paisabazaar are not sustainable, and accordingly, no
adjustments are required to be made to the accompanying consolidated financial statements with respect
to aforesaid matters. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matter

6. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and based on the consideration of the
reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries and associates, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current pericd. These matters were
ardressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whele, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do naot provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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7. We have determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

1

Revenue recognition:

(Refer note 2 for the accounting policy and
note 14 for disclosures of the accompanying
consalidated financial statements).

The Group's revenue from sale of services is
Rs. 497,221 lacs, majority of which are from
commission earned on sale of insurance and
financial products through their platforms and
offline channels.

The Group recognises revenue from its
custamers at a point in time when the related
services are rendered as per the terms of the
agreement with customer.

We identified revenus recognition as a key
audit matter because revenue is one of the
Group's key performance indicators which
makes it susceptible to misstatement and there
is an inherent risk around the accuracy of
revenue recorded which is dependent upon
reconciliations with the customer.

Our audit work included but was not restricted to the
following procedures:

Assessed the appropriateness of the Company's
revenua recognition policy in accordance with Ind AS
115 including evaluation of management's assessmeant
of performance ohligations determined to be satisfied at
a point of time.,

Obtained an understanding of the systems, processes
and contral  implemented for recognition  and
measurement of revenue;

Evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of the key controls related to revenue
recognition;

Selected samples of revenue transactions recorded
during the year and for specified period before and after
year end and tested these samples from the supporting
documents  that include contractual terms  and
conditions, statements and confirmation received from
customers, documents related to rates agreed with
custamers, to ensure revenue for such transactions has
been boaked in the correct period with correct amounts.

Performed analytical procedures such as customer
analysis, ratio analysis, efc. to determine any unusual
trends.

Evaluated the appropristeness and adequacy of
disclosures made in  the consolidated financial
statements with respect to revenue in accordance with
the requirements of applicable financial reporting
framework.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

8. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consclidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor's report. :

Our opinion on the consalidated financial statemeants does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consclidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
infarmation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements ar our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwize appears to be matenially
misstated.
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When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

8. The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company's Board of
Directors. The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 124(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consclidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consalidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its
associates in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The Halding
Gompany's Board of Directors are also responsible for ensuring accuracy of records including financial
information considered necessary for the preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements. Further, in
tarms of the provisions of the Act the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and
its associate companies coverad under the Act are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and ather irmegularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial contrals, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completenass
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, These financial
statements have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consclidated financial statements by the Board
of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

10, In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its associates to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liguidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but ta do 0.

11. Those respective Board of Directors are also responsible for averseeing the financial reporting precess of the
companies included in the Group and of its associates,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud ar error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards an Auditing will abways detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statemeants.

13. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughaout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
avidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,
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= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are alsc responsible for expressing
our opinion an whether the Halding Company has adeguate internal financial contrals with reference to
financial statements in place and the aperating effectiveness of such controls.;

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablensss of scccunung estimates
and related disclosures made by managemeant;

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based an the audit evidence obtained, whathar a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates and joint ventures to continue
as a going concern. If we concluds that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw altention in
our auditor's repart ta the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinicn. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associates
and joint ventures to cease to continue as a going concarn,

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the cansolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and aevents in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

s Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial infarmation of the entities or business
activities within the Group, and its associates, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial
statements of such enfities included in the consolidatad financial statements, of which we are the
independent auditors.For the other entities included in the consolidated financial stataments, which have
been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision
and petfermance of the audits carried aut by them. We remain solely responsible for cur audit opinion.

14, We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contral that we
identify during our audit.

15. We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

16. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
mast significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not ba
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

17. We did nat audit the financial statemeants of 5 subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflects total assefs of 2
4,076 lacs as at March 31, 2025, total revenues of ¥ Nil and net cash outflows amounting to 1 lac for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. Also, we did not audit the
consalidated financial statemeants of 3 subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflects total assets of ¥ 40,315
lacs as at March 31, 2025, total revenues of ¥ 37,216 lacs and net cash inflows amounting to ¥ 8917 lacs for
the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and our
opinian on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included
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in respect of these subsidiaries, and our repart in terms of sub-section (3) of section 143 of the Actin so far as
it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, are based solely on the reperts of the other auditors.

However, of these subsidiaries, 1 subsidiary's consolidated financial statements includes tatal revenues of % Nil
for the period April 01, 2024 to May 18, 2024, in respect of 1 step-down subsidiary based on its financial
statements, which has not been audited by its auditor, These financial statements have been furnished to
subsidiany's auditor by its management. In our opinion, and according to the informafion and explanations given
to us by the management, these financial statements are nat material to the Group.

Further, of these subsidiaries, 1 subsidiary is located outside India, whose consolidated financial statements and
other financial information have heen prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
that country, and which has besn audited by other auditor under generally accepted auditing standards
applicable in that country. The Holding Company's managament has converted the financial statements of such
subsidiary located outside India from accounting principles generally accepted in that country to accounting
principles genarally accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Holding
Company's management. Qur opinion on the consclidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of such subsidiary located outside India, is based on the report of
other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Holding Company and
audited by us.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matters with respsct to our reliance on the work
done by and the reports of the other auditors.

18, We did not audit the consolidated financial statements of 1 subsidiary, whose consolidated financial statements
reflect total assets of ¥ 2,565 lacs as at March 31, 2025, total revenues of ¥ 230 lacs and net cash inflows
amounting to ¥ 77 lacs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consclidated financial statements,
whose consalidated financial statements has not been audited by us. These consolidated financial statements
are unaudited and has been furnished to us by the management and our apinion an the consolidated financial
statements, in 2o far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the aforesaid subsidiary,
is based solely on such unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us by the managament, these financial statements are not material to the Group.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the financial
statements/ffinancial information certified by the management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

19. As required by section 197(18) of the Act, based an our audit and on the consideration of the report of the other
auditars, referred to in paragraph 17, on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries and associates, we
report that the Holding Company and it's 2 subsidiaries, incorparated in India whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act have paid remuneration to their respective directors during the year in accordance
with the provisions of and limits laid down under section 197 read with Schadule V' to the Act. Further, we report
that 7 subsidiaries incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have not
paid or provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 187(16)
of the Act is not applicable in respect of such subsidiaries.

20, As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companias (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order’) issuad by
the Central Government of India in tarms of section 143(11) of the Act based on the consideration of the Order
reports issued by us and by the respective other auditors as menticned in paragraph 17 above, of companies
included in the consolidated financial statements and covered under the Act we report that there are no
qualifications or adverse remarks reported in the respective Order reports of such companies.
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21. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of the ather
auditors on separate financial statements and ather financial information of the subsidiares, and associates
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, we report, o the extent
applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

b} In our opinion, proper hooks of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books
and the reparts of the other auditors;

c) The consolidated financial statements dealt with by this repart are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section
133 af the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

e] On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries,
respectively, and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiaries, covered under the Act, none of the
directors of the Heolding Company and its subsidiaries are disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

i With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of tha
Holding Company, its subsidiaries and its associates covered under the Act, and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure |I' wherein we have expressed an unmaodified
opinion; and

gl With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our cpinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other
auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiaries and associates
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act:

i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Group and its associates as at March 31, 2025, as detailed in Mote 25, 40 and
41 to the consolidated financial statements;

ii.  The Holding Company, its subsidiaries and associates did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2025;

ii.  There were no amounts which were reguired to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and associates covered under the Act, during the year
ended March 31, 2025.;

a. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and assoclates
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditers of such subsidiaries and associates respectively that,
to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 38(xii) to the consaolidated financial
staternents, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (gither from borrowed funds or
securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or its
subsidiaries and associates to or in any person{s) or enfity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the
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intermediaries”, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, wheiher, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company, or any such
subsidiaries and associatas ('the Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and associates
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries and associates respectively that,
to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 28(xiii) to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the Holding Company or its
subsidiaries and associatas from any persons) or entity(ies), including foreign ertities (the
Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Holding Company, or any such subsidiaries and associates shall, whether directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party ('Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantes, security or the like on
bahalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the
subsidiaries, and associates, as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our or other auditors’ notice that has caused us or the other auditors to
believe that the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any
material misstatement,

v,  The Haolding Company, its subsidiaries and associates have not declared or paid any dividend during
the year ended March 31, 2025.

vi.  Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by the respective auditors of
the subsidiaries and associates, the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and associates, in respect of
financial year commencing on April 01, 2024, have used an accounting software for maintaining their
books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log) facility and the same has been
aperated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of our audit we and respective auditars of the above referred subsidiaries and associates did not
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, Furthermare, the audit trails has
been preserved by the Holding Company and above referred subsidiaries and assaciates as per the
slatutery requirements for record retention.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

embership No.: 507429
LDIN; 25507429BMIXFJ4217

irm's Registration MNa.: 001078MN/MN500013

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 15,2025
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Annexure |

List of entities Included in the consolidated financial statement

Subsidiaries! step down subsidiaries:

N

16.

Policybazaar Insurance Brokers Private Limited
Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulting Private Limited
Icall Support Services Private Limited

Accurex Marketing and Consulting Private Limited

PB Marketing and Consulting Private Limited
Docprime Technologies Private Limited

PB Financial Account Aggregator Private Limited
Myloancare Ventures Private Limitad

FB Pay Private Limited (from April 05, 2024)

., PB Fintech FZ-LLC

. Visit Internat Services Private Limited (Indirect) (till May 16, 2024)

. ZPHIN Computer Systems and Software Designing - Sole Proprietorship LLC (Indirect}

. MLC Finotech Private Limited {Indirect)

. Genesis Group Limited {Indirect) {from May 17, 2024)

. Policybazaar Middle East Insurance Brokers LLC (Erstwhile, Genesis Insurance Brokers

{fram May 17, 2024)
PB Healthcare Services Private Limited (From January 01, 2025)

Assoclates:

1. Wisit Health Private Limited {Indirect) (till May 16, 2024)
2, ¥YKMNP Marketing Managament LLC (Indirect}

Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companles Act, 2013 ("the Act')

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of PB Fintech Limited ('the Holding
Company') and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as ‘the Group’)
and its associates as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are
companies covered under the Act, as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are
companies coverad under the Act, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial confrals
based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements established by the
Coampany considaring the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting {'the Guidance Note) issued by the Institute of Charerad
Accountants of India ('ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adeguate internal financial controls that were aperating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, as aforesaid, based on our audit. We
canducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Secfion
14310} of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial contrals with reference ta financial
slaterments, and the Guidance MNote issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to abtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and
rmaintained and if such contrals operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financizl
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial
contrals with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
confrols, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstaternent of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have abtained and the audit evidenca obtainad by the other auditors in
terms of their reparts referred ta in the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies as aforesaid.

Meaning of Intermal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
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dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial staternents in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to errar
or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the infernal financial contrals
with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial contrals
with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditars on internal financial
centrols with reference to financial statements of the subsidiary companies, the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies, which are companies covered under the Act, have in all material respects, adeguate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such controls were aperating effectively
as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Mote issued by the [CAI

Other Matters

9. We did not audit the internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to &
subsidiary companies, which are companies covered under the Act, whose financial statements reflect total
assets of ¥ 11,531 lacs and net assets of ¥ 8,781 lacs as at March 31, 2025, total revenues of ¥ 4,349 lacs
and net cash outflows amounting to ¥ 2,004 lacs for the year endad on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. Also we did not audit the internal financial control with reference to
consolidated financial statement insofar as it relates to 1 subsidiary Company, which is Company covered
under the Act, whose financial statement reflect total assets of F 11,5680 lacs and net assets of F 11,483 lacs
as at March 31, 2025, total revenues of § Nil and net cash outflows amounting to ¥ 15 lacs for the year ended
on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, The internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in so far as it relates to such subsidiary companies have been audited by
other auditors whose reparts has been furnished to us by the management and our repart on the adequacy
and operating effectivenass of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements far the
Halding Company and itz subsidiary companies, as aforesaid, under Section 143(3){i) of the Act in 50 far as
it relates to such subsidiary companies is based solely on the reports of the auditors of such companies. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to our relianca on the work done by and on the
reports of the other auditors,

Howsever, of these subsidiaries, 1 subsidiany's consolidated annual financial statements includes total
revenues of  Nil for the pericd April 01, 2024 to May 16, 2024, in respact of 1 step-down subsidiary based on
its annual financial statements, which have not been audited by its auditors. These annual financial statements
have been furnished to subsidiary’s auditor by its management. According to the information and explanations
given to us by the management, annual financial statements are not material to the Group.

10. We did not audit the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in so far as it relates to 1
subsidiary, which is company covered under the Act, whose consclidated financial statements reflect total

Charterad Accountants
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asseis of F 2,565 lacs and net assets of § 2,456 lacs as at March 31, 2025, total revenues of ¥ 230 lacs and
net cash inflows amounting to 3 77 lacs for the year ended on that date. The internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of such subsidiary company, which is company covered under the Act, are
unaudited and cur opinion under Section 143(3)() of the Act on adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiany,
which are companies covered under the Act, is solely based on the corresponding internal financial contrals
with reference to financial statements report cerified by the management of such company. In our apinian
and acearding to the infarmation and explanations given to us by the management, this financial statements
is not material ta the Group. Our opinion is nat modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our
reliance on the internal financial contrals with reference to financial statements report cerlified by the
management,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
's Registration Mo 001078MN/MNE00013

Ankit Mehta'
\?&ner
embership No.: 507422
LIDIN: 25507429BMIXF 4217

Place; Gurugram
Date: May 15,2025
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PB Finiech Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

b.

Note 1: General Information

PB Fintech Limiled (“the Company™ or “the Iolding Company™ or “PB Fintech”) is a Company incorporated on
4™ June 2008 under the provisions of the Companics Act, 1956 having its registered office at Plot no. 119, Sector
A4, Gurugram, Haryana. The Company is listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange
(NSE) in India on November 15, 2021,

These consolidaied Mnancial statements comprise the Company, its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Grroup’) and its associate companies. The Group is primarily engaged in solicitation, providing online marketing,
consulting and support services through its online portal policybazaar.com and paisabazaar.com largely for the
financial service industry, including insurance.

MNote 2: Summary of Material Accounting Policy Information

This note provides a list of material accounting policies adopled in the preparation of consolidated financial
slalements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated:

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Tnd
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended from time (o (ime)
and presentation requirements of Division 11 of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant
Schedule 111). These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupees and all values are rounded to
the nearest lakh, except when otherwise indicated.

Historical Cost Convention

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except lor the following
items:

- Certain financial asscts and liahilities measured at fair value:

- Defined benefit plans - plan assels measured at Fair value; and

- Share based payments

Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per group’s operating cycle and other
criteria set out in the Schedule 111, (Division IT) to the Companics Act, 2013 as amended from time to time. The
group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classilication of
assels and liabilities.

Amendment in Accountling standards adopted by the company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notificd Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2024 dated August 12, 2024, to introduce Ind AS 117 “Insurance Contracts”, replacing the existing Ind AS 104
“Tnsurance Contracts” and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Sccond Amendment Rules, 2024 dated

September 09, 2024, to amend Ind AS 116,

These amendments are clTeetive for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2024, The Company
has applied these amendments Tor the first-time.




I’B Fintech Limited
MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(i)

(i)

Introduction of Tnd AS 117:

Insurance Contracts Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts is a comprehensive new accounting standard for
insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Ind AS 117 applies
to all types of insurance contracts, regardless of the type of entities that issue them as well as to cerlain
guaraniees and [nancial instruments with diseretionary participation lcatures,

The amendment has no impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback - Amendments (o Ind AS 116;

The amendment specifics the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease lability arising in
a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognize any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use asset it retains.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or alter April 01, 2024 and must be
applied retrospectively 1o sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application of

Ind AS | 16.

The amendment has no significant impact on the Company’s linancial sialements,

e. Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(i)

(ii)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entitics over which the group has control. The group controls an entity when the group is
exposed Lo, or has rights (o, variable returns from its investment with the entity and has the ability 1o affect
those returns through its power to direct the relevanl aclivities ol the entity. Subsidiavies are [ully
consolidated from the date on which control is translerred (o the group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the group.

The group combines the lnancial statements of the parent and ils subsidiaries line by line adding logether
like items of assets, liabilities, equily, income and expenses. Inlercompany (ransactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
climinated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary 1o ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the group.

Associates

Associales are all entities over which the group has significant influence but not control or joint control. This
is generally the case where the group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associales are accounted for using the equity method of accounting (see (iii) below), after initially being
recogmised al cosl.




PB Fintech Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

({iii) Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
therealier 1o recognise the group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit and
loss, and the group’s share of other comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associales are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment.

Where the group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the
entity, including any other unsecured long-lerm receivables, the group docs not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behall ol the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the assel transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted
investees have been changed where necessary Lo ensure consistency with the policies adopled by the group.

The carrying amount of equily accounted investments are tested for impairment in accordance with the
policy described in nole 2(i) below,

. DBusiness Combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration transterred for the acquisition of a subsidiary
comprises the

+ tair values of the assets ransferred

= liahilities incurred to the former owners of the acguired business

= equily interests issued by the group

= [air value of any asset or liability resulting trom a contingent consideration arangement.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired enlily on an acquisilion-by-acquisition basis cither at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred.

CGoodwill is initially measured al cost, being the excess of the apggregate of the consideration transferred, amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity and acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquired entity over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Afler initial recognition,
goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually
or more [requently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected 1o benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities ol the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested [or impairment annually, or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. 11 the recoverable amount of the cash generating unil is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unil and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in
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the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

IT the business combination is achieved in slages, the acquisilion date carrving value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in the statement of profit and loss or other comprehensive income, as
appropriate.

Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation / amortization and
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable 1o the acquisition of the
ilems,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separale assel is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged (o the statement of profit and loss,
during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at cach balance sheel dale is
classificd as capital advances under the non-current assets.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over the useful lives, using
the straight line method. The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation performed by the
management which in some cases are different as compared to thase specified by Schedule 11 to the Companies

Act, 2013, in order (o reflect the actual usage of the assels.

The residual values of the assets are assessed o be nil. The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporling period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its estimaled recoverable amount,

(ains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in
the statement of profit and loss.

The useful lives of assets have been considered as follows;

Description Uselul life
Com puta'}-:_ i 3 years
Furniture & Fixtures® 7 years
OlTice Equipment® 3 years
Lease hold ITmprovements Period of Lease or 3 years
whichever is carlicr
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*For these class of assets, based on internal assessment the management believes that the useful lives as given
above best represents the period over which the management expects to use these assets. Ilence, useful lives of
these assets are different from the useful lives as preseribed under Part C of Schedule 1T of the Companies Act,
2013.

h. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and aceumulated impairment
losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimaled vselul lives. The
amaortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial yvear end. 1T the expectled
uselul lile of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed
accordingly. Gains or losscs arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the
difference between the netl disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income or
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The group has soltware licenses under intangible assets which are amortized over a period of 3 years.

. Impairment of non-financial assets

For all non-financial assets, the Group assesses whether there are indicators of impairment. If such an indicator
exisls, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, it
any. Where the asset does nol generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unil (CGLUY (o which the assel belongs,

The recoverable amount tor an asset or CGU is the higher of its value in use and fair value less costs ol disposal.
IT the recoverable amount of an asset or CGL is estimated to be less than its carrving amount, the asset or CGU is
considered impaired and the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated Tulure cash Mows of the assel or CGU are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects currenl markel assessments ol the lime value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent markel transactions are taken inlo
aceount,

If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriatc valuation model is used. These caleulations arc
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices Tor publicly traded companies or other available fair
value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations. These budgets and
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is
calculated and applied to project future cash ows afier the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond
periods covered by the most recent budgels/Torceasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the
budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rale can be justified. In
any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-lerm averagre growth rate Tor the products, indusiries, or
country or counirics in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

An assessmenl is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the
asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been
a change in the assumptions used o determine the asset’s or CGLPs recoverable amount sinee the last impairment
loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does nol exceed ils
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recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the assel in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer.

Rale ol services
The Group earns revenue from services as deseribed below:

17 Online marketing and consulting services — includes bulk emailers, advertisement banners on its website
and credit score advisory services

2} Commission from online aggregation of financial products - includes commission earned for sale of
financial products based on the leads generated from ils designated website

3) Insurance commission and rewards — includes commission and rewards earned for solicitation of
insurance products/policies hased on the leads gencrated from its designated website using telemarketing
maodes and through offline activilies

4) Ouisourcing services — includes services provided to insurers in relation Lo activities outsourced by them
to the Company

5) Sale of leads  includes revenue from sale of lead information of potential customers to banks etc
&) IT Support Services — includes services related (o 1T application and solutions

7) Interest and fees income- lending operations- includes interest income and processing fee income from
lending/financing business.

Revenue from above services (other than IT Support Services) is recognized al 4 poinl in time when the related
services are rendered as per the terms of the agreement with customers irrespective of payment terms, Revenue
from IT Support Services is recognised over time. Revenues are disclosed net of the Goods and Service tax
charged on such services. In terms of the contract, excess of revenue over the billed at the year end is carried in
the halance sheet as unbilled trade receivable as the amount is recoverable from the customer without any future
performance obligation. Further Unbilled is classified as current and non-current on the basis of the operating life
cycle of the company Cash received before the services are delivered is recognised as a conlract liability, ilany.

Revenue from above services is recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered. When
there is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimale collectability, revenue recognition 1s postponed until such
uncertainty is resolved.

Mo significant clement of financing is deemed present as the services are rendered with a eredit term of 30-45
days, which is consistent with market practice.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due [rom customers for services performed in the ordinary course of business.
Trade receivables are recognised initially al the amount of consideration that is unconditional. The Group holds
the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contraciual cash Mows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost, less loss allowance.
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. Foreign currency transactions

Functional and presentation currency

Tterns included in the financial statements of the group are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the group operates (*the functional currency®) i.c. Indian rupee (INR), which is PB Fintech
Limited’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Initial recognition: On initial recognition, all foreign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the
foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the
date of the transactions.

Subsequent recognition: As at the reporting date, foreign currency monctary items are translated using the
closing rate and non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange gains and losses arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetlary ilems al rates
different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the year or in previous financial
statements are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. in the year in which they arise.

Translation of foreign operations: The financial stalements of foreign operations are translated using the
principles and procedures mentioned above, since these businesses are carried on as if it is an extension of the
Company’s operations,

Group Companies:

The results and financial position of forcign operations (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
cconomy) that have a functional currency dillferent [rom the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation curreney as follows:

e assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the date ol thal balance sheel
¢ income and expenses are translated at average exchange rales
o All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income

When a foreign operation is sold, the associated exchange differences are reclassified (o the statement of profit
and loss, as part of the gain or loss on sale. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilitics of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

m. Employee beneflils

i} Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance scheme, Gratuity, Compensated
absences, Employee performance units and share based pavments.

ii) Defined contribution plans
The group contributions 1o Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance scheme are considered as contribution

1o delined contribution plan and charged as an expense based on the amount of contributions required (o be made
as and when services are rendered by the emplovees,
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iii) Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuily, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected
Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurement,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling and the return on plan asset, is
reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income in
the period in which they oceur. Re-measurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss, Past service cost is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period of a plan amendment. MNet interest is calculated by
applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined liability or asset.

iv) Employee performance units

For employee performance units, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit
method and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, with actuarial valuations of liability under the
scheme being carried out at each balance sheet date.

v) Short-term obligations

The undiscounled amount of shori-icem employee benefits expected to he paid in exchange for the services
rendered by employees are recogmised during the year when the employees render the related services.

These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences which are expected to be sellled wilhin
twelve months alier the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under:

{a) in case of accumulated compensaled absences, when employees render the services that increase their
entitlement of future compensated absences;

(b} in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences oceur,

vi) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for compensated absences are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value
of expeeted future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the
reporling period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at
the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.
Remeasurements as a resull of expericnce adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss..

The obligations in relation to compensated absences are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheel as
the group docs not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting
period, regardless ol when the actual settlement is expected to oceur.

vii) Share-based payments
The Group operates a number of equily scitled, employee share based compensation plans, under which the
Giroup receives services from employees as consideration for equity shares of the Company. The Group has

pranted stock options to its employees.

The fair value of the employees services received in exchange for the grant of the aptions is determined by
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1.

reference 1o the fair value of the oplions as at the grant date and is recognised as an ‘employee benefils
expenses’ with a corresponding increase in other equity, The total expense is recognised over the vesting period
which is the period over which the applicable vesting condition is to be satistied. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the aptions granted:

3 including any market performance conditions (e, the entily’s share price)
2 excluding the impact of any service and non-markel performance vesting conditions, and
3 including the impact of any non-vesting conditions

At the end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected 1o vest based
on the non-markel vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates,
il any, in the statement of profit and loss, with a corresponding adjustment to other equity.

Treasury shares (Shares held by the ESOP Trust)

The Company has created an Elechaces Employee Stock Option Plan Trust (ESOP Trust) for providing share-
based payment to ils employess under Employee Stock Option Plan 2014 (*ESOP- 2014™) and Employee Stock
Option Plan 2020 (*ESO0P — 2020™). The Company uses Trust as a vehicle for transferring shares to employees
under the employee remuneration schemes. The Company allots shares to ESOP Trust, The Company treals
ESOP trust as its extension and shares held by ESOP Trust are treated as treasury shares, Share oplions exercised
during the reporling year are seltled with treasury shares,

Leases

Group Company as a lessee:
Leases are recognised as a right-of-usc asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available [or use by the Group Company. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.

Lease liabilities:
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the future lease payments.

The lease paymenis include lxed payments (including in substance fxed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rale and amounts expecled to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to he exercised by the group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rale are
recognised as expenses in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs, Lease
payments (o be made under reasonably cerlain extension oplions are also included in the measurement of the
liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments are allocaied
between principal and finance cost.

The finance cost is charged (o the statement of profit and loss, over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate ol interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets:
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability and
lease payments made before the commencement date.
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Right-of-use asscts are depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis. Righl-ol-usc assets are measured al
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurcment of lease
liahilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incenlives received.

Short term leases and leases of low value assels:

Payments associaled with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assels are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in the statement of profit and loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term
ol 12 months or less. Low-value assels comprise small items of office equipment including IT equipment.

Earnings per share (EPS})

Basic earnings per share arc computed by dividing the profil afier tax by the weighted average number of cquity
shares outstanding during the year excluding treasury shares. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing
the profit aficr tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered [or deriving basic earnings
per share and the weighted average number of equily shares which could have been issued on the conversion of
all dilutive potential equily shares, except where results are anti-dilutive.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash lows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturilies of three months or less thal are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Trade Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior (o the end of the
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and arc usually paid within 30 days of recognition.
Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months afier the
reporling period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Income Taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluales positions taken in tax returns with respeet 1o
siluations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the lax bases ol assets and lLiabilities
and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred lax asscts are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent thal is probable that tax profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
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the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax assel is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are oftfset when there is a legally enforceable right 1o offsel current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current lax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the entily has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultancously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, excepl o the exient that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the lax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Provisions and conlingencics

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the
expenditure required 1o scttle the present obligation at the end of the reporling period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
inlerest expense. These are reviewed al each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assects

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past evenls, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises trom past events where it is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made. Conlingent assets are not recognised in consolidated financial stalements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain,
then the related assel is nol a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate. A contingent asset is disclosed,
where an inflow of economic benefits is probable. [owever, contingent assets are assessed continually and ifitis
virtually certain that an inflow of economic henefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the
period in which the change occurs.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equily instrument of another entity.

Financial assels

Classification:

The Group classifies its [inancial asscts in the following measurement catepories

« (hose to be measured subsequently at fair value (cither through other comprehensive income or through profit
and loss), and

+ those measured at amortized cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model [or managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash Mows,
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Initial recognition:

At initial recognition, the group measures a lnancial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assel. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the statement
al profit and loss,

Subscquent measurement:

After initial measurement, financial assets classitied at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised
cosl using the effcetive interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is
included in finance income in the statemenl of profit and loss,

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are carried at fair value at each reporting date.
Fair value changes are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCT). However, the group recognizes
interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profil and
loss. On de-recognition of the financial asset other than equity instruments, cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified to statement of profit and loss.

Any financial asset that does not meet the criteria for classification as al amorlized cost or as linancial assels al
fair value through other comprehensive income, is classified as Onancial assets at Tuir value through profit or loss.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are fair valued at each reporting date with all the changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured al Gair value. The Group may make an imevocable
election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value, The Group makes such
election on an instrument-by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

I the group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, arc recognized in the OCI. There is no reeyeling of the amounts from OCT to statement of
profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
other equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
ihe statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments in associales are measured al cosl. The investments are reviewed al each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 ‘Impairment of
Assets’. If any such indication exists, policy for impairment of non-financial assets is followed.

Impairment of linancial asseis

The group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with ils assels carried al
amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a signiticant increase in credit risk. The presumption under Ind AS 109 with reference to significant
increases in credit risk since initial recognition (when financial assels are more than 30 days past due), has been
rebutted.

For trade reccivables only, the group applies the simplified approach permitted wherein an amount cqual 1o
lifetime expected credit losses is measured and recognised as loss allowance.

AECH o
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De-recognition of financial assets

A financial assel is derecognized only when

= The group has translerred the rights to receive cash flows from the Mnancial asset or

» retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the [inancial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation
to pay the cash flows to one or mare recipients.

Where the group has transferred an assel, the group evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the group
has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial assel is not
derecognised.

Where the group has neither transferred a financial asset nor retaing substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derccognised if the group has not retained control of the
financial asset. Where the group retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised (o the
extent of continuing involvement in the financial assel,

Income recognition
Interest income

Interest income from financial assels al fair value through profit or loss and other comprehensive income is
recognised in the stalement of profit and loss as part of other income. Inlerest income on financial assets at
amoriised cost is calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as
part of other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the elleclive interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial asscis that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the
cffective interest rate is applied o the net carrying amount of the financial asset (afier deduction of the loss
allowance).

Financial Guarantee Contracts

The Group acts as lending service provider and in arrangements with the lender, it issues Default Loss Guarantee
(“DLG™) as per the digilal lending guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of Tndia referred in the financial statements
as “linancial puarantees™. Financial guarantees which are initially recognised in the financial statements at fair
value, Subsequent to initial recognition, the group’s liabilily under each financial guarantee is measured at the
higher of the amount initially recognised less cumulative amorlisation, and the expected credit loss.

ECL methodology

The Group calculates the expectled credit loss as a product of the exposure at defaull, probability of default and
loss given default, capped at the contractually agreed guarantec rate, where probability of default is estimated as a
likelihood of default over the tenure of the loans, loss given default is an estimate of loss net of any recaverics and
exposure at default is the amount of dishursement made under financial guarantee contracts.




PR Fintech Limited
Motes to the Consolidated Finaneial Statements lor the yvear ended March 31, 2025

Y.

W,

Finaneial liabilitics and equily instrumenis

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilitics are recognised initially at fair value minus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of financial liabilities. Financial liabilities are classificd as subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the
statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective rate of interest.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gaing and losses are recognised in Statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by laking inlo account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and
loss.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liabilily is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancclled or expires.
When an existing linancial liability is replaced by anaother from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the stalement of profit and loss.

Equity inslrumenis

An equily insirument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of any entity afier deducting all
ol its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group are recognised at the proceeds received, nel of direct issue
cosls.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assels and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there
is a legally enflorceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a nel basis or
realize the asset and settle the liability simultancously. The legally enforceable right must nol be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency.

Segment Tnformation

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided (o the chief operating
decision maker. Refer Note 30.

Exceptional items
Exceptional ilems include income or expense that are considered to be part of ordinary activities, however are of

such signilicance and nature that separate disclosure enables the user of the financial statements to understand the
impact in & more meaningtul manner.
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Vi

L.

Contributed Equity

The transaction costs of an equily (ransaciion are accounied for as a deduclion from equity (net of any related
income tax benelit) (o the extent they are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity transaction that
otherwise would have been avoided.

The transaction costs incurred with respect to the Initial Public OfTer (IPO of the Holding Company as reduced
by the amouni recovered [rom the selling shareholders are allocated between issue of new equily shares and
listing of existing equily shares. The costs attributable to issuance of new equity shares is recognised in equity.
The remaining costs attributable to listing of existing equity shares is recognised in the statement of profit and
lozs.

Rounding ol amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakh as per the
requirement of Schedule [T Division (11}, unless otherwise stated. An amount of ¥ (0) represents amount less
than 2 0 but more than negative 50,000 and ¥ 0 represents amount more than 2 0 but less than 2 50,000,

Note 3: Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by deflinition,
will seldom cqual the actual results. Management also needs 1o exercise judgement in applying the group’s
accounting policies.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items
which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than
those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant
noles together with information about the hasis of caleulation for each afTfected line ilem in the consolidaled
Minancial slatemenis.

Critical estimates and judgements

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:
#  Estimated uselul life of tangible assels — Management reviews ils estimate of the uselul lives of property,
plant and equipment al each reporting date, based on the expected ulility of the assets. Uncertainties in these
estimates relate to technical and economy obsolescence that may change the utility of property, plant and
equipment. Reasonable changes in assumptions are not expected to have a significant impact on the
amounts as at the balance sheet date.

Estimation of defincd benefit obligation — vefer note 12

Recognition of deferred tax assets Tor carvied forward tax losses — reler note 23(h)

Right-ol-use assels and lease lability — refer note 4(b)

Conlingent liabilities — refer note 23(1)

Share based payments — refer note 26

Impairment on non-current investments |goodwill and associates- refer note 2(i) and 3]

Impairment of trade receivable and financial assets- refer note 32

8 i o, i, i, iR,

Fstimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical expericnee and other faclors,
including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the group and that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances,
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Maote 4{a) : Property, plant and equipment

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars Computers Office Furniture & Leasehold Total
Equiprmenis Fixtures Improvements
Year ended March 31, 2024
Coros carrying amaonni
Chpening gross carryving amount 8,207 893 1,262 31,336 13,798
Additions 3,573 305 332 1.42% 6,208
Drispozals {323) (14} - - (337
Closing gross carrying amount 11,457 1,244 1,894 5,164 19,759
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation 4,711 343 01 1,242 6957
Depreciation charge for the year 2,299 215 230 1,267 4,001
1isposals (311) (14} - [325)
Closing scenmulated depreciation 01,099 744 621 2,509 10,643
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2024 4,758 S 1203 1,635 4,116
Year ended Marvch 31, 2025
Ciross carrying amaunt
Opcning gross carrying anwount 11457 1.244 1,804 5,104 19,759
Acmisition of subsidiary (refer note 37) 14 5 - - 39
Additions 6,280 408 &049 2,256 0,643
Iisposaly of subsidiary (refer note 303 i {H - - {0}
Drisposals (1,021) {41) {103 (15%) {1,324)
Closing gross carrving amaunt 146,730 1636 2,490 726l 28,117
Accumulated depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation 6,609 144 el 2,508 10,043
Aequisition of subsidiary {retor note 37) 1 3 - 4
[Mepreciation charpe for the year 3,002 330 03 1,774 0041
Disposals of subsidiary {refer note 36) {0y (0 - - (i
| Yisposals {1,0600% {30 92y (1728) (1,259}
Closing aceumulaled depreciation 9,302 1,038 502 4,160 15,392
Met carrying amount as al March 31, 2025 TA2R 595 1,598 3101 12,725

Feesfer note 25(11) for capital commitments related o property, plant and syuipment.
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Mate 4]h) @ Leases

This mede provides informstion G the beses whee the Group i a bessee. The Group has taben various ulfices and allioe fursitures on lease. Rental contracts asy
Lypreally ke far fised perinds of | year 1o % years, but may have estomsion apisons i discibed in iv) below:

{i) Amnuai recogmised in balance sheet

The halance sheet shows the Gdlwaims annt relacing i leases
(o} Right of use assels ) (¥ im Lakhs)
Hight-of-use assels -

Fligshal-nF-scsos asseds -

articulars 1 Fuernilmes and (ilice Tarsl
HFice premises z
Euuipments -
Year ended March 30, 2024
dFross carryEng awinel
i gines Camying amaune 7,548 55 24,200
Addetines 10,132 - 1132
I¥ispnsals - (4,573) ) {55 {3,228}
£ i gimss carrying nmaunt 33,107 - 33,007
Accusnilated depreciation
Cipening acommulated depraciathcs TR 245 064
Ciepreciatzon charge Tur 1he yen 4475 [ 4,538
Disposals = i1 e [308) .M
Closing accuwmmlated deprocizlion ILAET & = B l[lﬂ
Met carrying iI.ILtlIlll;_?l¥ Al Plareh 30, 2024 22410 = ¥ II.‘H
Wear ended March A1, 2025
GToys carrying ausguml
psimng, priss. carying amnunt 13,007 - 33,107
Alileniinis 13,564 TG 14,2060
Iapazals ] . - (5,850}
Claniing pross eavrylng it 42501 L] 45477
Aceuinilated depreciation
{ipening accumulated deprecistiun WART | DEs?
Drepreciation change for the yeas 5,70 oG 5,755
Drispusals (1,350 - 1.3
Closing u:!mmhw:l dlepreciating 15,043 49 15001
Toed carryin antl 308 @t Mlarch 31, 2005 j B 17,055 617 28345
I
Seaze linhilitlcs during the vear (4l Lakhs)
. Al Az al
ki Lt March 31, 2025 Mirels 31, 2024
Opening lease liabilities r 25334 A5
Mew beases recogmised -_- _- 13,750 2518
Terminaztionwithdsawals of leases j (2,739 [4,036)
Erierasl expense an Iwulu_b-lll.lm 531 3‘,1__5‘1
Dayment uf Teas halshiz (F.A25) (5, 71TH
Iclmnnlemr'll'ul.lilili!s : 32.2:!3_ P 15,333
Break wp of current aml son-taeeed lease liahilities:
[Cubia, % 4,565 3,525
Mo curecut i 27,357 11408
Tutal A2, 25,335
{id) Ansinudls seeapuaised in seatement of prafil aml los:
“Ihi: srabement of profit and loss shuwes tee Fallawing st relating to leases:
1% in Lalthsh
Faitleulnrs Year ended Year ¢||rlz\di
- Alaach 31, 2025 Alaich 31, J024
a) |eprecimion charge o right of mse assels Jrafi note 15
- Cffice premi j i 5,706 JATS
Furedures & Ofice Eguipmunis = 4% f-_’i_
Todal (a) 3 5755 T
15} rteneal urs iz habletics (included in finance cost) frefer notc 1 7] 3397 | T 50
() Epenise redating 1o shar 1em leases Gineluded mn vent i aiber expenses) [refer nose 21] [HEF am | i
Tudal (it 9,551 TA43

(i) Tloe: enead cxsh auiflow For benses for tlse year cosdiad Baich 31, 2025 wans 3 74235 Lakhs (March 31, 2024 - # 5707 Lakhs.)
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[iv] Extension and terninatinn speinns:-

Extenston and temuination codicns are mcluded inamomber of leases. Thess are used to mesamee operaiicoal Mexiblidy in berms of maraging the assets used in
e g5 aperatsnns. Thae eoteirsimt and reominatios agiions el ane exoreisahle by bath she s and e seapective lesan

v) Critical judzements in determising e lesse fenm-

In detemaining the lezse term, manzgement considers all facis and ciscumszances ikal creale 2m ecanomic incendive 1o exercise an extensicn oplion, or not
st 8 benmadioe aplem FxiGisioe aptens (ar g iods aflon Wmmnstios aptons) e gely wehedal m e s teom l i lese v aasonably cotain 1o be
exiended {or not terminaied)

Far ke, the dlnaasg fecicas are nocmally the mest relevasan

ap Il tEeere are significant pesalties 1o bermizate (oo not extend], the Group is typicaily reasunably certain to extend {or ned lemminate).

1] P ang: Besesetnlil spoaocsnenies s expectid 1o have & sipmdicss omming sgloe, the Grissap s pically ceassealdy cemae fo cstend fansal leomesale)

el Dberwase, the Chonp comsnders ather Betons semling hesorics] lease dueatioens and o costs anl busmess dhsroption resoived o oeplaee (e leased g,

Bl estenseon oplrons m beases have beon includied e Base Digbilsty, becavse the Group could not replece the assels walhout significant cost or business
ibtsnagiticn

The brase tema is reassessed if an option is 2cially exercised {ar not exercized] o the Group becames abliged e exercize (ar not exercise) it The assessnsent af

reaspnable covtzmly 15 only wevesed oF 3 sigpmficant pvent or 2 sgmifiant cherge i cncomstances ovcurs, which alfects this assessemend, and thal 15 withim the
coirril of the bessee
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Mote 52 Intangible assels

(T in Lakhs)

Particolars

Other intangihle Goodwill scquired

assets- Compuler

through business

Software combinations
Year ended March 31, 2024
Ciross carrying amaunl
Opening gross carrying amount 602 am
Addditions 2498 -
Dhisposals -
Closing pross carrying amount (R 1I] 3
Aceumulated amortisation
Cipening accumulated amartisation 1032 -
Aanortisation charge for the yeu 323
Dizposals - -
Clozing accumulated amortisalion 1,355 -
Met carrying amount 5= at March 31, 2024 555 3™
Year ended March 31, 2025
Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amounl 1,510 3.771
Additions %
Acgunizition of subzidiary (refor note 37) - 138
Dhisposals of subsidiary (refer note 30) {39) (2.218)
Disposals (194) -
Closing gross carvying amaunt 2025 1691
Avcumulated amortisation
Opening accumulaled amorlisation 1,355
Amaortization charge for the year 368 z
Impairment charge for the year - 1.553
Lrisposals of subsidiary (reler nole 36} (R -
I Yisposals {194 2
Closing accumulated amortisation 1,490 1,553
Mel carrying amount as at March 31, 2025 535 138
Details of carrying amount of goodwill allocated o cash generating units (CGUs) ¢

Asal As at

Farticulars

March 31, 2025
(T in Lakhs)

March 31, 2024
(* in Lalchs)

Cush generating units (CGLs)
Folicvhazaar Middle East Insurance Drokers LLC

(Erstwhile, Genesis Insurance Brokers LLC) (refor note 37) £ I

Mlyloancare Ventures Private Limited (refer note 34 and point (2} below) = 1.5533
Wisil Inlemnet Services Private Limited {refor note 36 and point (b) below) 2218
Total 134 377
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Impairment testing of goodwill

For the purpose of impaitment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination 5 allocated to the cash generating woit (CGLU), which
benelits from the svnergics of the acquisition. Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually. Impairment is recognised, when the
carrying amount of cash generating units (CGUY including poodwall, exceeds the estimated recoverable smount of CGUL

The recoverable amount of CGUS is determined based on higher of valuc-in-use and fair value. The fair value of a CGLU is determincd
based on the recent round of funding or valuc-in-use detcrmined bazed on discounted fomere cash flows, For calenlation of discomnted
future cash flows, the key sssumptions used by the Group are discount rate, long tem growth rate, capital outflow and working capital
requirements, efc. The assumplions are taken on the basis of past wrends and manapement estimates and judgement. The discount rate is
hased on the Weighted Averape Cost of Capital (WACC).

(a) During the current financial vear, the company assessed the recoverable amount of goodwall for CGU "Myloancare Ventures Privale
Lamited” based on there valoe in use, An impairment loss of T 1,553 lakhs was recopnived as the carcving amount of the CGLL including
pordwill, exceeded its estimated recoverable amount.

(1) Dacprime Technologics Private Limited ("wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) divested the entire (100%) shareholding in Visi
Internet Services Private Limiled, Accordingly, T 2,218 lakhs disclosed as disposal of poodwill.

The same has been discloscd as an cxceptional toms in note 232

(¢) As at March 31, 2025, the estimated recoverable amount of CGU "Policybsasar Middle TFast Insurance Brokers LLC (Trstwhile,
Cienests Insurance Grokers LLOCY exceeded ils carrving amount and accordingly, no inpairment was recognised. An analysiz of the
sensilivity of the computation to change in key assumptions bascd on reasonable probability did not identify any possible secnario in
which the recoverable amount of the CGU "Policybaraar Middle East Insurance Brokers 11O (Erstwhile, Genesis Insorance Brokers
LLCY wonld decrense below 11s carrying amaunl.

An analysis of the sensitivity of the compuiation o change i key assumplions based on reasonable probability. did not identify any
prssihle scenario in which the recoverable amount of the CGLN would decrease below its carrving amount.
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Bl 5 Financid assels
Minle Gl lnvesinients
Mnn-cusrent Investments

i = 1 {2 In Lakhs}
ih:litulili Asoan Mareh 31, 1015 As il Maach 31, 2024
o Mumber | Face vabe {2 Aumzunt Mumber | Face valee t) | Assiunt
Iy imdrnmenis ol paid opd
i Astchane Campiny 5@ equity methind]
Unguulcd
Visit Health Peivine Laaiitad [Assoosone ull May [6, 20245 - - - A§5,20 1] 1
VEMP Markeling Maragerent LLC (303 AED 10 1.4 i AEDY 10 1471
ﬁﬁuh-«ul 14duw 458
) Oilers |t falr valee chrough (rodi o Ines)
LIGEEHTEH
Wisit Health Privane Lamitsd {Associane nlt May Lo, 2024 L1220k In 305 - - -
Sueth Digiial Hisdih Foondaion 3, IR o 3 3 194 5
Suli-tetal s00 5
Total (A} LA T
18, Imvestmends in corporate Bands dfully pald upj
AL amutised eist
Uniquudcd
0%, Taa Indinriza Limited 160172006 TETSOFNR] G5 ¥ + : 1,30 1 000,20 13,151
Sub-tatal - 15408
el
ELTE Az Binle Firascs Lineed 032028 INESGIHOTIT 1,5} 100 a0 LAl4 21,50y [[SIECH] PRI
& 3% Adilys Ride Fironer Limered 160820006 THERG0 02102 2,0 TG an 3l 2,503 150 000 1515
2 10% Adine Blile Firgeee Linebsd 14012009 INEAGIHITIWE 14, 1HE} 10 an 14 15% LR [[EIECH] 5,051
#0134 Aditva Gida Housing Fimance Lireited | 1AS0E009 ENUKD LR 150 A, e JLeiRei i} 4181 - - -
B 105 Suling Binle Firsocs Linsial 00032009 THEARENTLAS 1,5 [ TH] Lagl - -
5% Axis Iinancs Lamnsd UTUSL0ET LS ETY32 3,000 100,800 3028 5,0} 10 an 5.0EF
A 2% Axin e Danited. 19NE002 T PIRERT NI TR 2,0 A0 200 4
M. 1555 foas Finarce Linined T30 L2027 HEERS | KOTUIY 2,504 10 a0 1535 2, S TR ] 535
A 2 Acin Finanes Limised BO0R000 T PIERS | KO3 2,50 NEHLGH 23R 2,500 1200 15M
. 14% Axis Finaree Lanioal 2EOZ20T% IHERFEOTI3T 7,500 10 G0 TARE 7, ) IR ] Tan
A0 Rajag Finarce Limited 1505005 [ME190ASISED i, 200 TOLLGH 10,243 - - -
T Bejig Finasce Linglal 13M42023 INELIRAGTEIR 5 | 20 0 LA - -
8434 Dajap Finarce Limied J9UR200G INEISGATEEDS m 1 2THLG0D 334 i 1 810 300 A5
2.10%, Rejig Finaece Limdlal S2ME2NT NE1LAKTERS LR LLTIEE R 5,050 AAEH) RIHLGHY a1
H.1%% Canl'm Lomes Limned UIBLZ02P ENLEETT AT 2,100 R00G00 .77 - - -
0.05% HDFC Rark Limited TRAGAN0R THEISDANRTIL s [T ) 5301 3] (ST 5,402
T IR Park Liried J85Z027T INEDIQADEITI 50 (Kl i) 2613 in | 2 g 2EI5
R 4% HDR Fironcial Servves Dimiled NIRRT PIETIGINTEXY 2,500 [LTHTES 2,40 2,300 R 2,522
HO3% FILNE Finaacial Samvioes Laniied UENRZOZY INETSRIOTENVT 10 1000003 BN LU 1 200G [KEL]
T22% T Tnfradichd Limited DRG0 THESFIPOTRFE AmE0 LU 4,017 &
HAOTH ICLCT Howsing Firance Litnged DIAVZ02T IKEQTICGIT L 5,000 [t el 5094 - - -
TR ICICT Housing Firance Limad 1203/2008 TNER G0 s 2,500 LUHAIHER 2,05 2500 LD 2657
¥ otk Mehirdis Invesuacins Lisitad F0050026 INETSFOTIRR 3000 e O A, 541 3800 I NHER v i
% Koink hlzhirdma Imoasiecnis PO, THER A Y2 - - Asu OO 4,71
E.19% Kosak Mohiediz Invesurnt Linsoad 2300207 INEQTSFOTIFL 500 1, (HR 2,585 - - -
A7 Kotk Mahiedr fmesimen) Limioed 200080807 [HEQ 33 F00ISS ER ] LUK MR TR - - -
B LFH LET Fidice Heldog Liaizd 0193070028 INEDLTEATCLT snn [Frst i Sl inn [RIT 30
£ 13%% L&T Fnanaz lieldng Limiled 25900 mey (HESSLO S B LU KRR 4,103 HOH 102, () LR EY
TTEM LET Feiee Heldng Lianils] IVI20027 THESSALOTIHG 4000 163, T 4.0 - - -
230%% Mahizde & Mahirdm Finaneal Services Limated IR0 7 IMLY FLOTSWS SHLGU £, 1Ka) 3,351 JOLGH [RU] 5607
B0 Mehiada & Mohinhe Fuomsa] Sovices Livdhal 2800703 7 TNETT4DNRMES A0 gan (K] 57 AN [ EE
200, Mahiadea & Mahirdr Finareal Services Linated 008502020 ML FILIEMAL pLEG ] LKA 1 SUOUD (K] 44
T.00% Mehiadea & Muohivdhs Fiomnd Soviees Ll 300R0ET INETTEDOTTINS Andi W THEE 1 4,164 - -
¥ 155 Mahindra and Makindra Firancial Services Limied 31052025 INETFEDUTVEY E 1isTA20) H, 3148 - - -
R 0% Penaswadin Firec Lineal 07112029 INESHICNTAS 4 0 [Eerkie ] 4,146 - -
T.90% Tata Capial Limiied URE22020 INLSMNOTROT 13U 101,054 1372 1500 [Reitin] 1A%
T.055 Tala Capital Limited (RSOHIE THE MM TS Ands [RCCEE] 405 -
Sub patal T4R 523 FLAEN
Al Tair valwe thrgagh othor comprehensgne ingume
Thintal
B HIE QNGU Pewo Addiens Lisdiwd DUAG2025 INELGINOEL LS - - - L1} | AL 200 (Rin]
Swb-talal - in:
Tatal (Ef 111
L. livesinees - atficrs
(a1 Tair vl thriregh prcdii 1 b}
Veguated
Fnvesmend in Wkala depsit * Rl
Taal §07h = 1l
Tudal (A TDIC) S e R 153,313 3,402
Appregate sstnint of quoted invesnisies 1451 124637
Avpregate mmunnl of market valoe of quudcd investimenis 144,087 TNEIS
Apgregare sinun of uilquned invesinients ER-] 0555

Appregane amunnl of impirment in vaee of invesiments

Mudtes:
i Foc value i in ladis Papecs ankes athérmze stk

iy Deriag e yor erded Bach 30, 2008, Wisi Vealib Friaie Limited ("VIPL"y (Assocaee of Docprime Tecknelogies Prvawe Limeed) convened s custondug Conpndsog Comaiible
deberoures i eoqity shares, On comersion, Doepnme Technologies Private Lmiied (Whelly owned Sutsidiany of companyd received 144,301 squity shens in b of comsnim of 144,511

Carepulary Converiible defenterss mothe rams of 111, Accordingly post oo n, Dhoscpisni: Teck

repenting ilale in maandme with nd A% 1

ies Paivare Licdited now leelids 415,293 of it ity sheees
Fundier, darsig the odment igaacial year, Decponie Techiakagis Fioite Linetod dncted 253 210 equity sharcs al e VHFL anl confiue: i wiwm anl bald 102005 cqnite skares which aggregaies
i Y on i Bally dilugd lasis. A s ecsell ol this divesient. VHPL has coasal o b an wscie ooy anl oz heen reclassifiod as firecial mvesimeni, whoch shall be fu valsed a1 e
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Mote 6 : Financial assels
Mnge nfa) 2 linestnients
Current Investments

im [kl

Partiziilass - i As at-h.l;;:.ﬁ ![. IEIES_ = As af March 31, 2024
Ml At Bmlicr A

A lavestiigids i equity insfnaments - Qiinted
A Gar walue throessh pradit o koes)
Siar Healih znd Alliad lnsurce Comgany Limited LLL 120 A% ELL 120 a04
Tuial {A) ) Gid
B Invesemend in mutual funds - Ungueted
A Fair walue dircesgls pealin ar besh
Aditya Birla Sun kle Low Dursation Furel - Direct - Growdh 142 005 Lon 186,132 1,227
Ay Bala Sun Lali: Kally 510 Flus PSU Bond Sep 2020060040 hides Fund - Divet - {snsah 14,310 144 { P ¥ 8 14,510,524 1, 60%
Aditva Dirla Sunffe Comperate Gond Fund - Direct - Gruwth 963,685 10 - -
Aaliya Funlg Sondli: Canpazeane Bond F Bepmlar - Ciresali 2 IRZ R 414 2 1E2u21 2,000
xis Danking & PSU Dbt Pusd - Diirect - Growth 74,278 197 T4,278 1,823
Acrs Conpooate Dt Fund - Bepulan - Gageah B85 140 1h13 - -
Axis Ulira Short Fund- Direct - Groswih 22,104,559 3155
Landban Bund Fund - Sl Tems Flan - Dwect - Growdh 4,685,501 ] - -
Haidhan Liguid Fund - Bepular - Gimawdh z 5 43,554 1,255
Landhan Money Managar Fund - Dicect - Growdh 2,623,120 1,123 - -
Banlean Lilica Shant Tevm Funl - Dhavel - Ciowth - - FOr 392 1418
Itarnda NP Parihas Liqeid Fund - Direct - Gromah 3,396 Lo
DEF Lizquidity Fumnl - Dhvgacd - Giroadl - - FEREE (1)
T¥SE Lo Duretion Fuaisd - Direcr - Growth TE62, 178 1,583
DET Ulira Shert Term Fand - Direct - Growdh e - 2273 a4
HIFC Braiking and FSLIeht Fund - D - Gircaatl [ 157 -
HOFC Comperzte Dend Fund - Darect - Gouwih 7872481 2,562 - -|
HIOFC Conpmarpte: Rl Fnl - Baudan - Gl 5,743,163 (Rt - -
HIF Levwe Diuraticn Fund - Dieect - Geowdh LE5 1,004 1012 - -
HDFC Moy Markel Fond - Direst - Groeth 22,313 1.2% - =
HIWF LS Sham Tersa Fund - Direci - G 19,521,545 2,750
TEEC Ulira Shert Durativn Fund - Direct - Growih 4,140 h e, 07 451
UM Prasfential Bankisg & P51 Deks Fund - Diresct - Geowth 4,438,842 et el 4
ICECT Prodentizl Danking & PSU Diebs Fund - Regolar - Growth 1,563,970 1,142 1,563,770 1057
TUHCT Prsdential Ceeparate Bosd Fund - Direet - CGieowsh 3,425,321 1 fiBE -
ICECT Prodantial Liquid Fend - Direct Man - Growth 158,302 a0z L19
TCHCT Popsentiel Mncy Marked Funid - Theect - daawth [RERIEH] Lk A )
ICECT Prodantial Mify PSU Dond Plus SDL Sep 2007 Ad60 Index Fond - Direct Plas - Grswth IT 188512 2091 1919
RCRCT Prgschennsd Sxvanges Fanl - Thecel - Dimgsah - - 1535
ICECT Prodentizl Ulira Shoet Tesm Fued - Diiract Plan - Growth 1.618,914 475 1670
Trrvezsi Diles Lgqund Funnd = Dheae) - Caomdh - - 0
Irmvesea Indiz Maney Marker Fund - Direct plzn - Growth - = il
Bulak Compurate Bad Ful - Dhreet - Grawil 4,285 TA2R sy
Kook Liquid Fend - Direct - Girewth L4313 100 -
Kulak Ly Dueation Fumsd - Diveet - Granathy EERE 1380 5
Koink (hvemipht Fund - Liesct - Gawdh 25,682 404 -
Blmae Asset Liguid Fund - Direct - Growih - - 1465
Hiprpan Indie Corpocate Bosd Fund - Diree - Growsh 200G, 607 1,251 *
Hippon India Meney Market Fund - Direct - Gauwih - 2 5134
Mippran hithia Ol Fund - Thecel - Lanwth AR G 4
501 Liguid Pusd - Diract - Growth - - 1212
TATA Liyund Fuml - et - Giwih - 2 1,054
111 Liquid Fond - Direce - Growth 18,650 Bl 113z
WUTI Mones Markel Fund - Threcl - Gauweth - - L)
LT Cvamigh Fund - Dheect - Geawth 4,600 il 105
Total {IF) 41,628 41,751
O lavestsest lis Carpacate Dands
(88 A cosa)
Ll
0% Tl Imafisdizs Lsnpal [00E2030 ENETREER |00 10 15,521 o
Hulb-torsl 16 KL1 -
Thuuted
e Footak Mathindra Brvestiments Lamited 23000 2076 INEITSFITHY 350 __5,_] 5]_ -
Hnl-dotal 5,151 -
Total (C) T ==l
Tadatl correm| invesisends (A+H+) h [ 42 355
Agprerabe amawni of quoted invesimenis RRET i
Appregaie snamnl sl marked value of guaged Investmends 5,506 L]
Appregate amawnt of unguaied investments REA4E 41,751

Apzrezale sl oF gl in valoe of vesiments




IFB Fintech Limided
Moles o the comsalidaled Toancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Mode 6 (b) = Luans

Carrend

Umsecmred, considersd good

I nan e conplayees

Lo ro nihers® [refer nnte 38[13)]
Tatal

Break-up of security deLails

Loang comsidered nood - secured

I nans considered good - unseoured

[ nans which have significant inerenss in credit risk
[.nams - creclis impaired

Taeal

Loss allowiince

Taeal

Asat Asnt
Muorch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
{T in Lalis) [T in Lukhs)

b il

20 =

2,04 i |
As at Asal
March 31, 2025 Mlarch 31, 2024
1% in Lakhs) (T im Lokhks)

2094 T

k4 71

AT i |

*Curstznding balamee of the unsscired lopn 1o odhers amonnes fo T2 000 Lakhs which has been eaended during the vear by Dosprime Technoleaics Private Limited {*a wholly owned
sulisiciary”) o zn anrelsbed party, Torabeal Healilease Fravate Lisged Jon the purpose of zcquining nghts ma commercial busldng on behalf ol the compamny or its group companies. The
linem carries an inderest e of 12% per annum: [oan alang with inderess shall be repayable on demard at sy time during the Inen duration of G0 days.

Mode 4 (] = Loans townrds financing activities

M-t
Lz llowane:
Tatal

Current
I.oss Alownnce
Tatal

Tatal

Mrezle-up of security dedails

Loains eonsidered nocd - seeared

Laars eonsidered pood - unsecnred

Toans which have significant increase in credie risk
Taoans - credil impnred

Todtal

Lass alkrvanve

Tzl

Motz Bepresents loans piven to catemal customess by MyleanCare Ventures Private Timited {2 "subsidinng® ) as pant of itz knding operations

As al A al
Mlarveh 51, 22E March 31, 2024
(T in Lalhs) (% im Takhe)

9 a1z

{23) {10}

56 S5

T35 T35

(4a0) {23y

275 405

v = | = 973
As at A at
Muorch 31, 225 March 31, 2024
= = (% in Lakhs) 1T in Lukhs)
14 1,350

H14 1,550

(483} {377)

331 Lak]




I"0 Fintech Limited
Mates (o the conselidated laancial statements far the veor ended March 31, 2025

Mate n{dd} : Trade receivohies

Trade recevables bom contact wills customers
hlkesd
Linbilled i
Trade recervables from conbract willy relared pariies [refer note I4H)
- Balbead
= Unssidlcd i
Loas allowars:
Tutal
Carrent partion
Memn- Current pomiian

Rreak-up of security details

Trade recervaldis congidered good - ssoured

T peceavaldes cansidered good - unsecured

Teaxde recemvables which have significant increase i caedit nsk
Tz peceivables - credit impaired

Tudal

Less: Loss allpasance

Tl

Adal As at
Alarch 31,2025 March 31, 224
{4 in Lakhs) (¥ in Lakhs)
14,330 18,360

oR 181 19,642

100

2 1w

{1,400} (1.233)

111,507 5,052

i 0 sl 63411

115 1,idl
Agal Az at
March 31, 2025 Mlarch 31, 2024

(% In Lakhs)} r!_i_ql_

i12.913 305
113,913 G005
{1.404) {1,253)

111,507 [t

i The reccivable i unhilled” hecanse the Group has nol yel ssacd an inwoice; however, the halanee has been inchided imider race receavables because i e an uncenditional rishe g

consideratumn.

Ageing ol trade receivables as st March 31, 2025

[ dimy, Fur Tolluwing perieds from U doe date
Lol s Liuinias tt s Lol Tk o] M ) 12 years I-3 years | Mure than 3 years Tei)
nzunths YeArS : mAL
Undispirted tradde receavables
considered goad 98 1R 9,080 1,296 129 k3 H & 112893
which hive :i#l!‘lfl.cﬂ.l_’ll.jll.l;I.EHN i credit risk - - - - - :
crechil mmgraized 2] - - - - -
Dimpubed waide vesivables L ¥ ] -
wmu]:tu.'d:pod I - - - i} - - )
e .-.»Itich have sipnificant increase in credit nisk = - - - - - -
credit inipaired - G et b = - -
‘Lotal USRS 9,989 4,296 129 g El) il 1213
Apeing of trude receivables as al March 31, 2024: Xy
Cutstanding for Flluwing periods oo the di dale
Particulars Trnhilled Mot due Leas dhan & | 6 maniks- 1 12 years T D] e i e Tacul
mnin s ACATE :
mj:pumd irade reccivahles : =
ceisidorsd poed A Al B G 6TT G277 121 1] 13 AR 40 0
which heve significant increase m credit usk - - = S - 2 -
eredit impaired : - % - & - -
Trispuired frade receivahiles 1
conmidered gool o 24 v - - 305
which have si_g_a_li_.ﬁl.'.mll miease in credif risk ) 4 = - - o
credil ||:|||:;;i.||.'l! s - - - = 7 =
Tatal 49p3%| w77 0,575 128 49 15 22 66,305
Mate ) : Cash ond cosh eyuivalents Asal As at
Mareh 31, 228 March 31, 224
{T in Lakhs) T in I.ul;hs_]_
Bulurwos wils banks
- ELCUCNL ACCoInes T.29 3419
Clegues on hand ; 19
Cash on hemd ] |
Drepnsits witl arganal matunty ol less than 3 months 45,756 20,047
Lol 546,051 A3 480
Male 6T} ¢ Cther hank halances A oal Agal
Maveh 51, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
(L in Fakhs) {7 in Takhs}
Bulanves ny laod deposit accounts with eriginal matursty muae than 33 362 41001
3 manths bat less than 12 montls®
Luotal 25,2463 AL

* Inelpdes fived depasits of T 15T Lakhs {Manch 31, 20249 - 4 Mal) wnder lien




PB Flateeh Limired
Mates to the consalidated fnuncial statements for the yveur ended darch 31, 2025

Male gl Oilver Tinancial assels

Man current

Seeurity deposits

Drepasils will msutancs companics

Chzposit with fhe ministry of ecenommy®

Nalamces i lisosd depusil acconnts wilh oigisal naiundy mone than 12 months®?

Twetal

As al As al

March 31, 2028 March 30, 2024
— (RinLakhs) (40 Lakhs)

2,134 1,703

Il Il

Gag :
115064 17406
117442 24,130

*Siatutery deposit of 2 69% Lakhs (AED 30 Lakhe) by Policybazaar Middle Enst lisuranes Brokers LLC {Ersewhile, Gonesis lnsuranee Brokers LLC) (Mimdiceet subsidiaay™) tiat camat be

willsdrzwn without the prior approval of the Ministry of Ecomomy, LTAE.

Current

Bovwity deposils

TNalances m fixed deposit aocounts with coiginal maturity with mars Ban 12 montbs™?
Aot recpverable from eoplayecs

Lesg: Loss allowance

Tnterest receivahle an lnan io castomer

Recoverable lrom custonmrs for TDS deducted w's 1940
Dlepozits with insurance companies

Imterest aocrwsl bl nal dus

Oilirs

Taotal

= Imchules lixed deposts of 3918 Lakbs (March 31, 2024 - 2 80 Lakhs) under lvon.
=¥ [ucludes fixed deposits of ¥ 128 Lakhs (March 51, 2024 - ¥ 231 Lakhs) under lien.

Mote 7z Inciime tux nxsets (onet)

Advaines incgme taee [net of provision T 3,460 Takhs (March 313024 T 1,270 Lakhs)]
Tatal

Maote & @ Oher non-current assets

Capltal advances

Cagntal advimoss

Oilcrs

o expenses

Balance with povernment autharities (refer note 25)
Tatal

Mate 01 Orlver current assets

Advances ather than capital advances
Advance o vewdors

less: Loss nllowance

Chihers

Malance with government methorities
Propaid vxprmsc

thers

Liss Loss allowance

Total

75
(173)

2,189

{1,324}

331
(256)

Axoat
March 31, 2015
(Tin I_.|.|.I|.I'||.'|n

Az at
Mareh 31, 2024
T in Lakhs)

T2t 2
131,504 204 012
152
1oz - 152
5 i)
Al 1187
93 =
13 IR
= 47 41
133,290 295,741
As at As at
March 51, 2025 Mlarch 51, 2024
- Teinkba)l R Lakine)
0500 3187
405010 3577
As at As af
March 31, 2025 Alarch 31, 2024
(T inm Lalihs) (T im Lakhs)
- 1
H o
2450
AT I
Az at Az at
March 31, 2025 Murch 31, 2024
{% in [akhs) [? i T_alchsl
330
HBS (24} 3G
3,732 3, 265
1,18 1,3
523
T (427} o
6, 301 £ 005




P1 Fintech Lamited
Mates (o ihe consaslidated finnncial stadensenis Tor (e year cuded March 31, 2025

Equity

Mate 10[a): Equily share capil al

Number of sharcs i i:;::‘:;:
Authaorised equity share cnpital (Egnity sharces of € 2 cach)
Asan Apl B, 2023 490, 501, 004 BRI
Audd: increase duniog e v LA = : .
st March 31, 2024 p B N 00500500 2810
Auld: increase during the year N N = -
s ot March 31, 0I5 — : B AULSI 0 800
1i1 Movemenis is isswed, sibsevibed and Tully paid np egnily share capital {Equity sharves of T 2 each, Tully p=id up)

Mumber ol shares I i:::;:
As al Apnl 1, 2023 EEUNRTE L 5,002
Add- shares issued duning the yems LT I'_S 21
s at Murch 31, 20246 _ E 450,208 414 2,024
T‘-\dn} shawrcs issed during the year B.053B18 o [}
A at March 31, 2056 _ _ = 450,257,251 5,145

¥ tiebudes 1,258,105 treasury shaves (Masch 31, 2024 - 2641 255 treasury shares) beld by Employee Stock Cpdica Plan Truse {EEOP Trast).

(i) Kecociliatinn of Trensary shares leld by ESOF Trost ar the heginning and enal of the year =
Adarch 310, 2025 March 31, 224

Treasiry shares Kumber of shires  Mumilier of shaies
ALl bigimming of the year 2041254 3,747,238
Add - purchased during the vear 2 -
Leass ;. encemised during the year N x 5 (1,352,952} {1,105 971
ALt nd of fhe year : ] 1,243, 50k 1641258

(i) Rights. preferences nmd restriclions attached ta shores

Equity Shares: The Compamy has anby ane clag of equity shares having a par value of € 2 e slane (Maseh 31, 2024 - T 2 per share). Each shanehalder i cligible far oz vate per share held. Any dradend proposed
v 1l Hanrd of Thirectors is subject b e apgrovs! of the sharehalders in the ersung Anwsl Gergeal Meeting, exceps in case of interim dividend. In e eaent wul liguidation, il equity shareholders are ehgibie 1
yeeeive the remaining assets of the Company sl dissribision of all preferential amounts, i propestion 16 their dharchoiding

{iv) Detnils ol sharehalders halding mare thon 3% shares in (v Company

Axal March 31, 2025 Azt March 31, 2024
Munmbser ol sliares % hedding Mumber ol shares o hnbding,
Makesonae Techsalogies Linvited 56 850,000 L3R5 Stk S DK 1327T%
ew Warld Fund Inc 18,927 5848 4 125% 26,558,966 5 A
Tenvent Tl Fisope ILY. S48, T50 2.13% W AR TS 6.26%
Tatal [ _ 8,566,330 19.3%% 114,607,716 15.42%

{v) Detnils of sharehalding of praneneers:
The Company 1 2 prolisaonally maraged Company znd ol does ot hasve s pramaters in terms of section 2069} ol Coanpanscs Act, 2003

fi) Dusmne il v yenes immediately preceding U wpormg, date, oo shares have heen bought back, wsued fin consideniian ather than eash except fur conversin ol CLCES it couity shares and heans shares
irmued are as [ollows

March 31,2025 Murch 3L, 2029 March 31,2023 Warch 31, 2022 Mlarch 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Alloned as fally paid up equaty stemes by way of bons 4 i 176,715,820 + -
Additiunal eyualy shares allotted as fully pzid up for convessiun of COCHS - - = 233,674,211 - -




PB Fintech Limited
Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025

Equity

Note L0(b): Instruments entirely cquity in nature (cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares)

MNumber of shares

Authorised preference share capital

Amount
(¥ in Lakhs)

As at April 01, 2023 950,000 1490
Add: increase during the year 5 .
As at March 31, 2024 950,000 1940
Add: increase during the year : z
As al March 31, 2025 950,000 190

MNote : As of March 31, 2025, and March 31, 2024, there are no issued, subscribed, and fully paid-up comulative

compulsorily convertible preference share capital,




It Fimtech Limited
MNotes to the consnlidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note 1) Other equity

(T in Lakhs)

Pariiculnrs Lkl Adal
March 31, 2025 Murch 31, 2424
Securities premium TR0 T10,727
Retained carnings {140, 400) [233,052)
Equaty setiled shine ased payiment reserve 51,7349 100,464
Gicneral reserve 2 2
Foregn corrency anslion rescmve 590 24
FVOCT reserve - deld instiruments %) L
Treasury sharcs (3 {1
Truest resere 40 1&
Hatutory rescrve 45 3
Tutal 634,043 ST
i) Securithes premi (T in Lakhs)
. Asat Asat
R March 31, 2025 Murch 31, 2024
Opening balance TULTET AT Kb
Adld: exercise of options transferred from cquity settled share based pryment reserve T0.297 12,501
Closing halance THL 024 TLLT2T
ii) Retainod carnings (% in Laklis)
Particulars s A5k
March 31, 2025 Muarch 31, 2024
Ogrenning: Ialanee {233.952) (240,333)
Profil for the vear 35,3 6 98
lLess: approgriation firem curment year profit to statutory reserve (4%) {3)
Tieans el other comprehensmee income secognized diveetly in retzined camings
- Remeasurements of post-employment benedits obligation, net of e (i) (314)
Closing lalance ) {199, 400) {233,952)
ili) Equity scttled share based payment reserve (% i Laklis)
Partheulars o s
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening lualaee 100 664 20404
Add: sdditions For emploves share-based payment expense iscured 2137 3307
Less: transfer to Securitics Premium for exercise of options {70.247) (12501
Closing balance 51,739 LU
iv) Ceneral reserve (% in Lakhs)
. As ol As al
Faremlan March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Oipcning balance 2 2
Al dransler during s ves Tonn equity seitbed share based payment resonve - -
Chising, halance 2 2
v} Fureipgn corrency oansllion reserve (% in Lakhs)
Fartlculars e i
Miarch 31, 2025 harch 31, 2024
Opening halanco 624 A35
Al comrency Iransklion adjushinents relating 1o subsidiary [25) (L
Clising halance o 624
vi) FWVOCL reserve = delid instromenis (% b Laklis)
As ol As al
ki March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance (7 (%)
Mlid changes in U Bin valiee of debt instowments at FYOCT (2 (3)
Closing balance (&} L]




'l Fintech Limited
Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear

vii}) Treasury shares

cnded Mareh 31, 2025

(¥ in Lukhs)

Particulars A at FLyAL
March 31, 2025 Blwrch 31, 2024
Opening Lalmc: [ 4
Less: transferred o trust reserve - {6}
Al excercised'zald during the year L5 0 [
Closing balance = (i L]
vilii} Trust reserve (T in Lakhs}
Parvticulars Adat bt
March 31, 2025 Murch 31, 2024
COhpeniing: alanee I8
Add: transterred from trensury shines = &
Al net resulis of ESOP frust operitions PR a2 12
Closing halance 40 14
ix) Statntory reserve (T im Lakhs)
Particulars fimal . At
Murch 31, 2025 Murch 31, 2424
Opaning, balanee %]
Add: appropnation from current yesr ool 435 i
Closing bulunce ot 48 k|

Malore s poepose al allier reserves:

a) Becurities premivin

Securities premium is wsed (0 record the e e issee of shares, Secwritics premium is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies

A, 2013

b} Rednined enrmings

This represents simplusf{deficit) of profit and loss acoount and cumulitive geins wnd losses ariging on e remensurenen) of defined heoelits plans i
accordance with Ind A% 19 that huve been recogmised in edher conprchensive ineome

¢} Equity settled share based poymend reserve

Equity sztbed share based paypinent reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued o the employess of the Company and s

subsidiarics under ESOF scheme.

) Gieneral reserve

General Beserve created on G fetuee of FS0P in carlicr years,

) Foreign currency translalion reserve

Exchange differences arising on translation ol the regn opesations are eeognised in ether eomprehensive inceme as described in accounting policy
and scewnulated in s sepaate rezeree within equity. The cumulative amount is reclussified to profit or loss when e nel mvesiment is disposed E L

1) FVOCT reserve - debt instroments

The Growp has elected 1o recognise changes i the G values oF cetain investiments i dels instruments in other comprehensive income. These changes
are acewmlated within fhe FYOCT reserve within cquity. The Group transfers amounts from Uuis reserve 1o relamed earnmg when relesant dely

securitics are derecognised.

£) Treasury shares

Treasury sharcs represents purchase value of swn shares of e Comnpany hrgugh Bteclaces Employees Stock Option Plan Trust for issuing the shares

L the elgrible employees on exercize of slock options.

b} Trusi reserve
This repressnls vel mcome of e 12500 foist

Iy Bratutory rescrve

In accordance with the UAE Federal Low Moo {32} of 2021, 10% of the profit for the year is required to be transforred 1o statutory rescree. The
oy may sesolve to digcontinee such annual ransfers when the reserve totils 50% of (e wsseed shine capital The reserve s ool ailable G
distribution excepd i the circumstances stipulaled By the Law. Pussisant o this ks, every limited liability company is required to set aside 10% of ils
anrl ned |:|r:-ﬁ13 B 2EALale y 1ERIvE




I'B Vintech Limited
Moles to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025

Note 10{d): Non-contralling interests (NCI)

Summarised balance sheet;

(¥ in Lakhs)

MyLoanCare Ventures Private Limited

Asat Asg at
Farticidam March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Current assets 2489 1,893
Current liabilities 101 145
Met current assets (A) 2,388 1,748
Mon-current assels (¥ GG
Mon-current ligbilities b Ll
Met non-current assefs (1) 08 49
Mel assets (A+B) 2,456 2,397
Accumulated NCI 554 544
Summarised statement of profit and loss: (% in Lalkhs)

MyLoanCare Ventures Private Limited

Particnlars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income:
Revenue from operations 230 #12
Prolitiloss) for the vear (it} (1,158)
Oiher comprehensive loss 3) (21)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 63 (1.17%)
Profitiloss) allocated to NCT 15 (257)

Summarised statement of cash Mows:

(% in Lalhs)

MyLoanCare Ventures Private Limited

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash flows from operaling aclivities hE (] {962}
Cash flowws from invesling aclivilies {470) H2n
Cash fows from financing aclivilies = i)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 76 (374}




Pt Fiatech Limited

Waotes tn the cnmsolidated financlal statements for the year ended Maorck 30, 2025

Mode 11 ¢ Financial liahilities

* includes amonnd of T 42 Takhs (March 51, 20024 - T Mil) payahle o micra and small enferprizes

Mote | 1{a) : Trale poyahles Asal Asal

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

£ i Laklig) {4 in Lakhs)
Current
Tradks payables | nvicro snd sl cotcoprises™ 1,236 | 670
Tradk: payables - ethers 15,447 28,175
Trade payahles to relmed partics [refer necs 29 11 261
Tstal 366094 3,106
* inclodes amourd of 2 Nil {March 31, 2024 - T 0 Lakhs) payable o Visie [lealth Privare Limsted which is a micro enterprise
Ageing of trade payables as ar AMarch 31, 2025
Crulstamding fur lelluwing periods from the due date
Pariieulars Dlnhilled Mod due Texs than 1-2 3 Mowe ihan Tudal
= e 1 vear VEArs yEArs 3 vears
Undhspuled ks payables
" Moo and sall enterpeses S Rt 1138 a1 3 | 1,234
Ulhrs 23,621 [LIREES 1,248 37 3 46 35458
Dot wands payaldes = |
Meerg aved small cureipocs 5 - i E -
Orilers " ’ i 5 L : z
Tutal 254620 11,622 1,367 an 1 16 sﬁ,a
Ageing of trude puyohles as at March 31, 2024:
Chuistamding for fellowing periods from the dae dote

Fartienlars Tinhilled Mot due T.cxs than -2 ) More tlan Tutal
1 year FEArE FEArE 3 vears

Unidisqusel tracde pavalles 3

_hﬂ?:_l::l.;u.d-saiallﬂll.v_npﬂe_m"s__ " x ; = == 1,381 286 - | 670

Uiy 14,4100 L) E5E 2,599 & i Fo] 28436
Liespubed tiadi payables E

icon and susall cntcapriscs - e : L - -

Others 3 £ 5 i o ] I
Tatal 14,490 127 3285 i 2 24 104
Nude 1L{L) : Other Anancial liabilities Ad al A Al

March 31, 2023 Alarch 51, 2024

{T in Lakhs) (7 Im Lakhs)
Employeee relabed payables 17432 13,803
Capital creditors® siE BN K
Cibers 3 2

Total 18,215 14,115




F'D Fintech Limited

Pules ba dhe o aladed Mimamcial nis Tor the yvear ended ALarch 30, 2005
Mote 12 2 Pravisians
Mlarch 31, 2025 Plzarch 30, 1024

Cnrrent Nom-curreml Toral Current Mk curresl “Taral
Giraluity 45104 194 - 347 34T
Cumpenzatal dheenoes 5,104 - L 1T 4,131 - 4,131
Employes perfarmance units - 121 170 - - -
Finascial gusmentee ulblisstions freler node 323 1,175 007s - - :
Pz oo G T lialaling (refer noe 24) S 2,450 A5
Oihers a6 SRR - - -
Tutal Hdl5 474 12 55% 4,131 3470 Tt

oAt alsenees

B

‘L leave ahligations cover the Group's lizhiliny for eaned leoves. 1 he Giroag's linhilitg is aceanally detenmemid fusang thi: Frogecsed Unil Credit method] al the 2nd of each vear. Actuarizl lossesd gains e
recognisad in the Staremeat of Prodit red Loss in the year in which @ey arise

Thaz amonn of e proeasis of £ 5,104 Lakla {hanh 31, 2034 — 2 8131 Lakhs) s pesenied a5 cmrent wath respect to romparies in the Geoup which dozs nog have an enceaditionn] right 1o dafer
setbamnant L iy ol the cbhpatiors, Howesor, based oo peesl sxpoimency, the Grosp dues mot expect all employees of such compasies oo fake the full anount of aeerued leave o regeere peyiieat within
ez st 12 il Thee Godbooang, anmmmts tellect Teave that s ol espechod S be laken ur paid withs e rext 12 monihs,

Mlarvel 30, 2025 Mach 31, WL
(% ine Lakbis) [#in Lakhs)
Leave chligations not expected to be settled within the 1964 S1au

mexi |2 moeks

{ia} Defined cembribucion plans

a1 Prenlio Fuel

iz Girniip hi 2 deflnaed conirilatioe plan in respece of peovidess fund Cosanibuions are nade o provident fisd lin gmployees ol te rats of 1% of basic salary as per regulations. The contritations are
oz 0 rogsnered peovidens Gand sfasisneral by te Crventinesr The eldgation of i G s Dt o the amont auniributed and it bas no further contractual nor sy coastnactive cbEgation. The
cxprenis: opongesid during e yoear anfid Macch 31, 2025 wonds didinad comidunion pla s § 848 Lakie (Mach 11, 3024- % 3,665 Lakhs) [reder note 16]

b} Emploges St Insurznce
The Geoup has a defined caniribatinn plan in respect of employes siale insurance. The experes recoguised durieg the year endad March 31, 2025 sowarads delived cuntnkestaon plan is ¥ 39 Lakhs (March
30, 20 - £ 433 Lokhs) [refer noie 6]

i} Parst emepluymeen) bemelids plan obligations- Gratity

The Granp proades loe geatuily G employess w2 per e Pgmest of Gresnty Act, 1972, Emplovees wio are in continucus s:nvice for a perind of 5 years are eliginde for gruity. The annnm of prenesy
pavalike an el mentenminglim 13 the empl least lawn bessic salary per munth compuled propoctionately for 13 days salary muliplied for the nunsber of years of serdee The pranaty las @ & Gindal
plan and the Geuup mekes cominbulion 2 recegmized Gnds in Inda. The Growp dees not fully fiund the lizbility and msaimains 2 target bevel of funding, e be nmissainad ver a penesd ol s Basel o
eslimaions ol mopectsd zraluily payments.

i} The amouels recognized in the balance sheet and the movemenis in the el defined benefils ohligagon over the vear ane 25 fallons:

Poesend valis Fair valug of plam
.1 Pid umnnml

all nliligation asswis

(T im Lakhs) i€ in Lalchs) % in Lakhs)
April 11, 1013 4,504 {2.u54) 2440
Cinvend s easl 1,925 - (B rk]
it interest expensadincume) 03 L 1B0) 183
Tatal ameunt recognised in profit ordoss ] = T (LRD) 1,906
RameTmresas
Teetum am plan assets, excluding amounts indhoded & inleres s s
expensallincams) (3 ()
{raim)Inss from chamge in demographic assumptions 175 - L73
{am) s oo e i Gmanaal ssmmplion 152 g 152
Expencace {prins)dnsses &5 ]
Tutal asnuum| recezmivnl i ather conrelnsive incamy i 40z [#5) an
Eogloyar cuninbutons - [LREEY i1 L1}
Benedil ignicnis {348y Iz [ig0]

March 31, 1024 B4 [%165) 347




'l Fimtech Limited

Mutes tu the conselidxled Tnanciad Tor the year emded March 20, 2005
Present value Fair wilue of plan PR
ol abilization HEEE
(¢ I Laldhs) {1 I Laldhs) 14 bn Lalkhs)
April U1, 2024 [rEE {3,165) 3470
Agagmeatmon of subsidins 1 3
Hoivised Apail 1, 2024 BETT {3,165) 3482
Cluivaall sk enst 2IM - 22T
Past =zrvice cost =13} - (]
B aeres] ampense i) 484 {244) | 5
“Total amount recognised in profi o bess o 1,845 124 1557
Eraeasurcssnis
Bt co plan sssets, exchnfng somonts ioehnlid s mienee b & q
vprenseimegmh 20 120)
[ %ss Dgne change o demersphi: assomplsns {4} {d)
(Cizin}laas frons change in fsancial assumplinns 445 - L[5
Experience (gains)losses 204 - A
Tatal recopidsed in ather conprehy Ineaiee 715 {20 mE
Enployer conitibnlion - {1.826) {1.826)
Danedil paymments (324} EE[ {14)
Mzl 31, 2025 E&T3 {4368 380
B} Tl med liahiliny disclazed alve relates to Tl plans aoe s Fellows:
Alarcl 30, W25 March 31, 024
(¥ in Laldus) ¥ im Lalchs)
Present value of funded cbligations 8,87 3,644
Fan valui ol plaes asscis 4,969) i3, 165
Deficit of funded plan s = 504 AT
¢} The significant actuarial assumaptions were as follaws:
Empleyess Gratuity Fund Compensated ahsences
March 30, 2025 March 51, 2024 March 31, 2005 March 31, 2024
Lliscoant Bare G485 - T4 TN - T TS O 5% - T T T27%
Ealary prowih rate
- Ape belnwe 35 TR, TR - D0 0O (EE U 7.¥0G - 10.00%
- Ay 55 and abonve Q00 T.50% - 10006 000 50 - 10.00%
Airitioa Bare
- 18 40 30 years LR - 59000 2.00% - 51005 0 - 5900 200 - 52.00%
- 30 w44 poars 00 - DR, 2 NP - 3 00 00, - 0 RG 200G - 000
- 45 40 58 years QLo - 2000 LGS s . 2000 1%
= 59 40 G0 years 100 - T AR, WA 00, - 7 NS MA
:iiﬁf:'m” i kil 24.50- 1407 33008 2450 - 34407 2330 - 3208
Minnality Teble AL (RGO and - TALM [2006-08] ami TALB (2006-08)and  TALM {2006-08) and
TALM 2041 2-14 Ul TALM 30R2-14 U TALM 2002-14 (B LALML 200L2-14 Ul

Ansumptinns regarding fulure moriality for pension are set based cn acarial advice in accardamce with published siatistics and experiznce. The discount rate 2esumed & deszrmined by referencs o ke
vield ot the balance sheet date on govemment bonds. The essimares of furare salary Ecrezse, censidesed in actuarizl valuation, takes accoust of inflasion, senioiny, pramation and ailies relevant Bicons sach
as demand and supply in the emplovenent maskes

al) Sensitivity analysis:
Tz sensivavty of the defined besefits ehlipation mo changes it waiplied priscipel assnmpliones i

Emvparct om delined benefits obBgadion
Fnpacd o dlelimed Lenefis obligation (%)

ChAnpe in assmmpling liewease i asaunnin Thervans in passmnplizn
Mlanels 31, 025 Manel 31, 2024 Maich 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 Marels 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discousd rate 1% 1% {10000%) (10.3725) 12.13% 12.51%
Hadary grenwth ot 1% 1% T8 5 ITH (70750 (T61%)

s eortenl In pesches, s ez onhbkely fawmon, sml changses = some ol the assumplions nay be
1l prsmergeeis e sams il (paisont salos of e dilined benehit obliation caleulatsd with the
i) Dy s gl as wlien eedeofatng e dielingd Beochil Balohiy cacosmal we tha balaees sheel, Assimplins olher fean discoont rate amd

cakeaditins e smsaimaty ol e dolined Denlits obdgaen i
prajertal wil el sl a6 il end al e s
satlmy gty ats i mecd ssatosl fon i Comguany

g} The major cadegaries of plans assels are as follows:

Fromds Managed by Insers® - 1005
*The Funds aze managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) and Kolak Mzhindra Life Insurance Company Limited (insurers) and TATA AlA Life Insurznce Compasy Limesed. They doooe
provide breakbep of plan zmsets by imvesiment hpe.




FH Fiiterle Limilted .
Modes So the conselidated Anangial sdntensemts for the vear enaled March 2, 2025

[} Risk exposure

Uhmnugh it defined hepefits plans, the Coapany is expinsed i a number of risks, ge mast significann of which are detsbed Lo

Assed voladililys

“The plan linkilities are calodaied vsing, o dseoun e sel wish reference o boad yickds; iF plan sssers andespedoom e g, tus will create s delio The pratmty Tond s sdomsicesd o Lali:
Inssiraniee: Carpeeation of Inda red Ketak Mabindea Lite Insirance Cempessy Linied (i wip pralmly sdeme. Avoerdinghye alius) the: eniey plan sssel swealmemis o oasbmal by thy
wranrera Thess s anhject b imeest e ask wich s manmaped by e msseee

Changes im bend yiehls: A decrease in bond vields will increase plan ligbebsies, ahhough this will ke pastially offszt by an increase i the vabee of de plans’ assets mainmined by the mswers. The gratuity
fond is administered through LEC & Eotzk hMahindra Lifs Insurance Company Linsived TATA ALA Life [nsorance Composy Limited wider iss group graniny scheme

g PiTinad Bensfits liability sl eosplager contribntinng
The weighted recrape durtion of the defined benefins abligasen is (4 0890 - 1133 yews) [March 31, 2024 {8 99 - 27 pons)]

Lz Aheam Belween Detween Dher 5
i Tutal
H vear i -2 vears 2-Svears Years
{¥ im Loldus) 1% in Laldhs) i€ In Lakhs} {+ in Lakhs) 44 im Lol
March 31, 2025
Poar oy defined el eldpatios (pranany) mE 75 150 2453 13984
Tatal T 1608 8554 15,084
March 31, 2024
P coplogma defied hefi olihipatios (pranay) 567 530 1M1 6615 10,157
Tatal L et ALY 5 2441 GEIE [TRER

liv) Emplayee perfarmnnce unirs

The: gy beas inplenicsicd & castesenlad cmplises pedomans: Daes ("FFUT) sclioss looeaimes chedide cmplovess emphneed i PR Pariner bisiness wat. Each EPU represents mn employes’s
vl shene i B poetalahiy e g dclingd Goee-yin ek peomd. FPL ey e ediamid mocash aillier moa lomp sun ol @ end of e Block pened or in three annual tranches, following each
prefitaldie vean, syt W acimesomen) al mdveslosl pesEnmenoy comhines: al bisecss ol profilsaite, The bability under the schense is reocenized a5 3 provision based on estimased pavouls and will ke
remmsured 2k esch reporling dste, The EFU Scheme i avopmied fn as "ot lung-teim eonplopee benelil” ender Ind A5 19, The defined benefit ubligation is actuasially determined wsng dee projected
uni credi methud, wath scluanal pans and bosses vevogmesed immmedizie by i stalvement of pradil ad luss, The dotal provision as o Masck 31, 20035, amonis do0 T 120 Lakhs.




'l Fintech Limited

Mites tn the conssliduted Anandial statements for e vear ended March 31, 24025

Mode 13 1 (dther current lubilities

Staturory duss payabde
Lheferred revenae
Lithers

Toral

A% &l As ot
March 51, 2025 Wlarch 31, 24
(€ im Lakhs) {7 in Lakhs)
4084 T
40 ]
37 1%
1,141 5 1M1}




P Fintech Limited
Motes (o (he consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025

Mote 14 1 Revenue from operations

Sale of services {uet of applicable taxes):
[nsurance commissin end rewards

Chalsourcing services

Commission from aggrepation of financial products
Cline marketing and consulting

Sale of leads

Il supporl services (reler node below)

Intesest and fees income - lending eperations

Total

Mate: Performance abligations and remaining performance obligations

Year ended
March 31, 2025
{¥ in Lakls)

Year ended
Mareh 31, 2024
(Zin Lakhs)

427838 235,295
1,961 35,731
53,740 54,614
4,074 4,263
§.258 B.724
726 76l
222 170
497,721 343,768

The remaining performanee ebligation disclosure provides the ageregate amount of the ransaction price yvet to be reengniscd as at the end of the reporting penod and an
explanation as 1o when the Group cxpects fo recngnise these amounts in revenue from operations. However, applyimg the practical expedient a5 given i Ind A% 115, the
Group has not disclosed the remaiming performance abligation related mformation, as all 11 consulting and support contracts are for periods of one year or less, or they

are billed based on time iearred

Mote 15 : Other income

Interest meoms
- U bank deposits- mepsured al amostised cost
- Chiy inecame tax refind
- O unvwind ing of discount on security deposit - measured al amortised cost
- O Corporate bonds- measwred al amorlised cost
- Uh lown o whers
- T ather financial assces
Met gain on sale on finuncial assets mundutorily messured vl fur value through profil or loss

Met fair value gains on Ooancial assels mandatonily measured at Gir value through profit or loss
Giain on lenmination of leases

Profit an sale of property, plant and squipment

|.os= allowsnees- other linancials assels no longer required wrillen back

Lugs allowances- other assets no longer required written hack

Miscellaneous income
Tuotal

Year ended Year ended
Mareh 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
(% in Lakhs) (% in Lakls)
24 798 32519

026 A1

250 244

11,159 1477

23

- 30

2,076 1,983

1.570 1,011

2149 715

34 4

13

T

I8 I

40,773 IHNST




P Fintech Limiled

Nobes to the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025

Mote 16 : Employee benelits expense

Sularies, wages and Bonws

Contrilaitions to provident and other funds [refier note 12]
Compenzated ahsenees

Ciratuity [refer nole 12]

Stall wellare expenses

Employee performance units expense refer node 12
Fmployee share-hased payment expense [refer nole 26(b)]
Total

Mote [T : Finance ensts

Interest expenses - lease labilities measured al amnorlised cost
Interes! expenses - olhers
Total

Mote [8 @ Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation of progerly, plant and equipment
Drepreciation of right-of-use assets
Aamortisation of tangible asscts

Total

Mote 19 3 Advertising and promation expenses

Adwvertiscment cxpenses
Husiness promuolion expenses
Tuotal

Mote 20 : Network and internet cxpenses

Internet and server churges
Computer amd equipment rental
IT consultancy charges
Communication expenses
{¥thers

Total

Yoeuar ended
Murch 31, 2025
(Tinm Lakhs)

Yoear ended
Murch 31, 2024
(% in Lakhs)

162,525 121,004
5,142 4098
2068 24173
I,357 14906
3,084 2301

120 -
21,368 33,028
195,867 [64,412

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

(% in Lakhs) (T in Lakhs)
3373 2,508

Gl 47

3,383 2046

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025
(% i Lakhs)

March 31, 2024
(T in Lakhs)

(AL 4011

5755 4 538

368 323

12,127 5.872
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

{% in Lakhs)

(% in Luldis)

104,412 #7235
4,601 26060

KL e H49,5401
Year ended Year ended

March 31, ZU25
(T in Lalihs)

March 31, 2024
(T in Lakhs)

#4541 7,594
20 i
220 206
5094 317

%7 I 5 3
13,905 11,478




Pl Fintech Limited
Motes to the conselidated lnancial statements for e year ended March 31, 2025

Mote 21 : Ciher expenses

Electricity and water cxpenses

Rent

Fepairs and mumnienance

Insuranee

Rates and taxes

I.cgal and professional charges #

Securily and howsekeeping expenses

CHlice expense

Travel and conveyancs

Roenutment cionses

Printing and staliwonery

Postage and courier expense

Payiment pateway charges

Bank charges

{“ontract staff

I'raining and seminar

Corporale sacial responsibility expendilure

Loss altowance - trade reccivables (net of adjustment for had debts)®
1.0z allowance - loans for financizl activities (net of adjustment for loan written off)*+
|.oss allowances- other assels (nel of adjustment for amound wrillen of () *
FProperly, plant and equipment weillen off

Met loss - foreign exchange differcnces

Membership foe and subscription charges

COmmIssion expenses

Financial guarantes expenses {refer node 33)

TProsvision for (IS8T lizhility [refer note 25)

Misccllaneous expenses

Total

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(¥ in Lakhs) (% in Laldis)
2154 1,630
473 36
L1358 T35
L4935 Qa0
169 a9
1,968 1,555
LATY 1158
T 471
2955 2,106
S AT
27 240
375 214
6,421 9.45%
22 2
2,521 4,298
1,708 Fa2
- &
153 TR
113 173
1491 477
15 -
1% 3
Al Ha
126,305 69456
L.IT5 -
2450
kLS il
164,568 P, 0103

# includes ¥ 266 Lakhs (March 31, 2024: ¥ 185 Lakhs) as sitting foes and remunceation to independent directors of parent company

*includes had debts of T Mil (March 31, 20024; T 385 Lakhs)
*#includes boan written ofT of 2 9 Lakhs (March 31, 2024: 2 7 Lakhs)
*F=¥ineludes amound weitten off of T 139 Lakhs (March 31, 2024 T Nil)




I'B Fintech Limited

Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note 22 : Exceptional iterns

Particulars

A, Impairment of goodwill acquired in a business combinalion

- Myloancare Ventures Private Limited (refer note 5 and 34)

B. Gain on reduetion in control in associate
- Visil Health Private Limited (refer note 335)

C. Loss on divestment of subsidary
- Visit Internet Services Private Limited (refer note 5 and 36)

D, Gain on fair valuation ol investment
- Visit Health Privale Limited {refer nole 35)

Total exceplional gain

Significant cstimate: investments in subsidiaries

Yeuar ended
March 31, 2025
(T in Lakhs)

(3.431)

2,035

(2,262)

Year ended
March 31, 2024
(T in Lakhs)

(4,105)

The Company reviews its carmying value ol investmenls carried al amortised cost annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication lor impairment. 1€ the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss

15 accounted for.

Estimates and judgmenis are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.




PB Vintech Limited
Motes to the consolidated linancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note : 23(a) Income tax expense
(i) Income tax expense

Particulars

Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year
Tax expenses related to earlier vears

Total current lax expense

Deferred tax
DNecrease ( (increase) in deferred tax assets
Total deferred tax expense/{bencefit)

Income tax expense

(ii) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplicd by India’s lax rate:

Particulars

Prolit belore exceplional items and tax
Tax al the Indian lax rate of 25 168% (March 31, 2024 - 25 1 G8%)

Business losses, unabsorbed depreciation and other temporary differences on which
deferred tax not recognised

Business losses lapsed during the cuprent year

Eitect of tax rates difference in foreign jurisdiction

Fair valuation gains on investment routed through exceptional item

Profit on sale of investment taxed at special rates (unlisted equity instruments)
others

Income tax expense

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
( in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
3,446 1,270
3446 1.270
3,446 1,270
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(¥ in Lalkhs) (T in Lakhs)
34.657 T
8.723 |94
(8.321) (1,768)
1,778 -
125 798
569 -
6d2 =
(70) 299
3,446 1,270




"3 Fimlech Limited
Moales o the conselidatel lonancial slalements for the year encel March 31, 2028

Note 1 23(b) Deferred tax assets (net)

{n) Deferred fnx nssels (net)

Farticulars

Drzfermed tax liabilitics

I haferres] s mssals *

Net ileferred fax neset [ (liability)

* Drelerred tax pssels bis been recogmised only 1o the extent of defeored tax lizhility,

(b} Components of deferred lax assels

Particulars

Propety, pland and equpment aml intamgible assels

Emgiboyee henefits alaligstoas

Unwinding of discount on sccuvity depasil - incasured al amaeiized cost
Luoss allowance - trade receivables

Lamss wllowwances: odlwer assels

Leage liahilitics

Tax bosscs

Cithers

Total

(e} Cmponents ol deferred tax liabilities

Favticulars

Rigghil ol s assens

Mel Bar valye giin on finmeinl assets mandatorily mensured at fair valwe through preodit o beas o
oiher comprehensive income

Unwalized ineonie on conpooate bomls measored ol amorhised cos)

Ortheers

Taotal

(eI} Linusesl dux lnsses nnal umrecopnised temporary differences:

Parficulnrs

Unused tox losses

Other tax credis 0

Pudwetilde tempraany dilTeences
Tl

Potentinl tax bensfit @ 25.108%

Expiry dates for nansed tax losscs
- hlarch 31, 2024
- March 31, 2025
= Marels 31, 2026
- harch 31, 2027
- March 11, 2028
- March 31, 29
- Mareh 31, 2030
- March 31, 2031
= March 31, MIG2
- barch 31, 2033

10 dnscludes walsoshed deprecatmn whech can be camed Forward indefiritely and hove no expiny date.

Axal Aol

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2024

(¥ in Lalchs) % in Lakhs)
(8.243) (6, 208)

%241 6,208

A=l As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(% in Lakls) (% im Lakhs)

LD 714

e 1 HKH

249 174

157 ERL]

ey f

110 G %0

41,572 51,150

403 352

54,607 60083

Asal Asal

Murch 31, 225 March 21, 2024

% In Lakhz) (% i Lalchs)

7,144 3,053

1 &S 255

300

11 .

§,243 0,208

As at Asal

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2024
(% i Lalths) (¥ in Lakhs)

163,610 200,748

1,157 2432

17,20 , 14459

184,575 217,639

46 454 34775

5,264

1,7

1710 1710

10,335 26,028

11,227 513

13478 14,862

75,112 75,132

30,675 ELNTH]

6,57 6,755

5074 -

Mate: Tlee Group has accumndlated bismess heses ol 2 166767 lakhs (Previows year - 3 203,180 lakhs) [including accumdated mabsm bed
depreciation of # 3,157 lakhs (Frevaous Year — % 3432 lakhs)| as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961, The wnahsorbed hushiess losses
ansunting 1o 2 163,610 lakhs (Previons Yes 3 200,748 Ekhs)are avinlable for offset for moximuom period of cight years from the inenrrence of Toss,

As at the year ended March 30, 2025 aml Mareh 31, 20024, the Groap bas net delemed tax nsses rump‘nsmg of deductible teompoary dilTerences,

I.'-nnughl forward losses and l||lﬁ|m‘|||.l€|l |lu|:||m.u|l||.||| |:|||rJEr lax | s In llli." iahsence of reasonable cortainty as o

realization of Delenel Tax Assels



PH Finteel Linited
Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Maote 24; Tax Collected nf Sonrce nnder Gowds nnid Services Tax

Policyliesean Insimance Hrokers Progne: Linated (tee "Whally owned subsidiany™ or "Pelicybaeanr™) is anelectronic commerce operator (Coperator”™) under tlhe
Candral Croueds and Services Tax Acl, 2007 ("OGET Aa™) The said Acl requires every operator, nol being an agent, to collect an amownt, caloulated at
prescribed e, om the vilue of taxable supplies made throngsh it where the considerntion for such supplics is collected by the operator.

In the assessmend of the management supported by legal advice, the aforcsaid requircment of collecting 1ax &l sowee 5 ool applicable 10 Poleybasasm as
Folicybazaar is not engnged in collecting money on bebalf of the insurcrs and ihe maooey Mows divecily foom the customers o e insance company ool a
nodal bank account. [n view of ihe management, Policybazaar mesely facilitates tansfen of insaranee gremiems to the msmance companes gl s regqumed o ensurs
transfier of the full amownt of such premiwm, withaut e abilicy to doduct ay amoums pasd by dee cnstames Acoordmaly, the above matter is nod lkely 1 hivs
any imnpect and accordingly, no provision has bees made in ege Goancial stabements

Poshieylizssar alse nede cepresentation to the CGovenaent sutlsaiiies and the Pracipal Regnlator (CTREAT) i the earlier vears, seeking clarification and exemption
Tromnn spplecalaility of e alove section on insranee adermedianies

Mote 15; Clontingent liabilities and Commitments

(i} Conbingent lalililies
Claims agabnst the Greoup ol acknmwledged as debis @

As at Asat

Muwrch 31, 2025 Murch 31, Hi24

{% I Lakha) (% in Lakha)

Tocowe lax wallens I:jl'll:hlljlllﬁ mileres] el prenalises) * - Ru22
= 422

*{a)} As at March 31, 2024, the Company had disclesed a contingemt Liabiliny of 28,922 Lakhs in cespect of a meome tax ialler pendmg belore vamioes appeliats
authesitics rebating to e sddition of share premeun reccived by the comgrany agaiest the issae of share capital Tor Assessiment Year 2006 17, During the curment
Tiancial year, il malter was decided i Favour of the Compary by e lncome Tax Appellste Tonbomal (ITAT), and zecordingly, mo tix outblow is expected. As a
vzl the previonsly disclosed contingent lalibity bas been witlulawn,

(b} The Directorate General of GST Intelligence (*DGGI) conducted a scarch and inquiry in aceosdance with section 6702} of the Cental Goods and Service Tax
Act, 20017 (CGET Act’) ar premiges of Paissbazasr Marketing and Consulting Private Linsited the wholly awned subsidizies (W05 ) om 14 Oclober 2272 aml 15
Detober 2022 regarding availment of input i coedit &5 per provisiens of Section V6[2) of CGET Act Fee the faocial years 202022 ami 02227 an relation o
centain vendors, The WiOS provided neccssary information / clarifications a3 voquested by the DGO Maseant to e seascho e mepiry held, the WOS made an
initial deposit of ¥ 1,000 Lakhs wnder proteat. Farther, the WOS weluntarily depradted #0450 Lakhs wander protest, imcloding interest and penally amiler secion
I3 of CGST Act, 2017, The tatal amownt of 2 2,450 Lakhs bas alse boon provide:d on 2 consenvative lssis in the boaks of aceomis for the quarter ended 30 Jime
224 During ihe guanior cidod 31 Decenther 2024, DGGT issucd & elosue leter an the above proceedings amber seciion 74060 ol CGST Act, 2007, in view of
ey of tax, along with interest and penally. On 1O Jameary 2025, the managesent sulsiatted a letlen to 20600 rederating e Giet that the WOS las deposited
the amaunt uisder protest under seetion Y305} ol CGET Act, 20017, Mo Tulsn commmsneatien recerved from the Goods aad Service Tax depsriment in this regard,

Further, the Incone tax Department (Cthe Deparnend”) conducted 8 survey omder section 1334 of Income Tax Act, 1961 ot the head office of the Holding
Compary amd premizs of one of the WOS, Paisabazaar Marketime and Consulting Private Limited, on 13 December 2023 and 14 December 2023, segarding
Irmzmctions with vertain vendurs for the finoncial yenrs Hi21-22 and 20232-23. The WS provided necessary information as requested by the Depaniment during the
survey procesdings. The Department vide various letiersmotices requested for corain docoments! information to which the management of the WOS has didy
responded with the required detnils nfter the survey procesdings. Duning the quarter ended 31 Dioccmber 2024, the said WOR has received aleow causs notice w's
142¢1) and 148A0b) of Income Tax Act, 1961 on certain expenditurs incurred by them during FY 2021-22 and FY 2022-23 with the specificd verboos covered
under the survey procoedings including the vendors covered by DIZGL Om 20 December 2024, the WiOS replicd o the Depatment denying, the allegations
mentioned in these notices. On 23 Januory 2025, the WOS reccived an Crder under section 148A0d) and nedice wnder section 18 of the Deonee Tax A, 1961 10
re-asgess the income for azscsament year 2022-23. Farthcrmore, on 31 harch 2025, the WOS reocived an assessment oden (e ey for AY 202324 imder
scction 143(3) dizallowing the expendituns icursed fowands the servioes availod froom the spocified vendors, amonmiing 2 8,580 Lakhs aler desallowing the sl
expenditiere under scction 37 of Dsconse Tax Act, 1901 along with a demand arder for 2 932 Lakhs which was enoneously compated witlwal considering: brougli
Foawand losses sel ol adjustments. The WOS also reecived 2 slow cause notios wides sectiom 274 read wilh secion 2704 Tor intating, the penally procesdings for
fhie AY 20232 with respect o the disallowance orade msler section 37 of lneoare Tax Act, 1961 The memagement o WOS has filed an appeal before CIT(A)
sl suclan onber issoed,




P Fintech Limilel
Mutes fo the consolidated flnancial statenents for the year ended March 31, 2025

Further the WS sulsequent 1o year el has lso neecived e order for AY 2022-23 dated 17 Apoil 2025 undec section 147 disallowing expendituee incered
powearils the services avaibed Trom e speciliel vemsboes, anwunting o # 6031 Lakhs afier disallowing expembinge wider section 37 ol ihe osnse Tax Act, 1961,
However, in Uhis ooder also the WO% s recereed g demamd order of #1067 Lakhs which wies also avoeonsly cmmpted watbond comsddanng Boongli Tovward
Tosses sel off adjpstments. T addition o the demmama order WS Tas recerves] show canse notics under sseiion 274 read welbsection 27004, Tor miiating e pediy
procesdings For the AY 202324 with respect o the disallowince made under section 37 of Incoms Tax Act, 1961, The manapgement of WOS has Blesd an apqueal
before CITUA) against such an order issued

Funtleermore, during the year ended 31 Maorch 2025, the WS also reccived natices from the Income tax Depanment under section 2402 of the Probibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 in respect of transactions with cenain specified vendors, alleging the WOS as the Beneficial owner of such transactions.
These vendors ang alse covered uisder the Income tax procoedings as mentioned above. The WiOS submitted its response vide leteers dated 09 December 2024, 16
Decemlser 2024 and 27 December 2024, On 27 March 2023, the WS reccived notics w's 26{1) & 2603} for initiating the benami proceedings by ndjudicating
sl ity which now stands sdjourned 1o 03 June, 2025, Mo further commuanication las hoon reeeived Grom e Depamiment on thiz mateer,

The mamagement s legal epens aller examamng tee notices, sabmissions and documents avarlable wab the WOS, opdved thiat the aforementioned allegations anc
mol sestimadibe al e appellie Gonns. While the outeone s awaited, basis begal apinion and masgenen’s asessnent, e management deteomimed that e
mitlerial iclpestinenis are vequired with respect o e afoementioned maiter in e coaselidated Gnamcial satenenn

(i) Capital commitnienis
Capital gapendiinre comiraciad fior sl fhe end o the reporing peraad bl nod regoprised as labihines 15 as Toflows

Az at A at
Murch 31, 2125 Murch 31, 20124
(% in Lakhs) {2 in Lakhs)
Property, plant aml e 3 1}

324 a0




TR Finteeh Limited

Muates fo he o lidated fenancial st Tor ke year eonded March 31, 2025

Mote 20: Share based paymends

(n) Empdevee aplian plan

The Compary institeted the Employa: Sock Opticn Plan(zh o zrant equity Based incostn:s o dhpible coplnoees ol e Company ol ils subsidaries. The Coenpamy Bas four ES0P schemes, namely, Cenplovee Steck Ciption Flan
2004 CESO- 20047, Fsplines Sioek Opdsn Pl 2000 (CEROP - 20207, Emplgess Sl Opteoe Flan - 2021 (°FS0F — 202170 aml Bmpleve: Sk Option Plan 2024 ("ES0P- 20241%). With an objective Lo implamend the
FROP= 204 and FROF- D02 i Compiay Fanmed the Euctoces Foiployess Sk Opasn Mo Tosst {ihe ©FS0P Troast™) s bebd an peresess Fruoily Shanes sl sebssgoently allul or areler them o empluvess in aocurdance with
tha: e al B ESOP Schenices, as applicatle ESOF - 2021 sod ESOP - 2024 scsemes are implemented and diemsrered dirseily By the Cesnpany:

The cpgons granied @l March 51, 2025 have missmum vesling period of | vear and maximum 3 vears from the date of grase (March $1, 2004z 13 vears)
) Buniniey of apninm gransd wnder plas

Mlarch 31, ZUZE Maech 31, 2024
Weighicd Average Weighted Avervape
exercise price per share Mumiher of afifions  exereise pieee per sliare Musiher o aglinm
apilan frefer mote ()] apinn [refer wase: (ii)]
(11} (R4
Cpening Balance £ LA 2, 0 2 2iLnh B4
Ciamead durig @ vear 153173 4527 Wik 2 544 0979
Exervized duing the ven 2 {3371,750 2 2,228 115}
Fouteitedilapsed during the vear 2 {302,011 2 (30412}
Closing Dalance 12,674,125 13020035
Vestid aml asimeraalil 1 487,110 2 172,51
[iik S2eare uplions oulslanding o fhe end of vear hone Tulluwizes expiry dale and exercise prices ©
Gt Gianl date Exjiivy date ESOF Seleui Errirr pae M::L“;:':;';:; “:':;";;wm"';;
Cihann 14 rerztamilyer OF 3000 PMdarch 31, 2000 FROP- 2000 2 231500 120,50
Grani 13 Ootober 03, 2021 farch 31, B0 CEOP 2020 z T, D 1,211,348
Ciranm li letaber 15, 2U21 Muarch 31, A0 EXA1P- 203 2 1,322,723 2AGREASE
Grani 17 Outober 05, 2021 Manch 31, X0 ES0P- 2L 2 4,724,446 12 05,803
Ciram 1§ Haveniher 16, 2022 March 21, 200 ESIP- 2021 ra 785,154 1057 K21
Ciam 19 July 31, 2033 Blach 31, 3030 ES0P- 03] 2 25001 EGE251
Girani 20 July 35, 2axy Bfarch 31, 2000 ES0F 2000 g 113 200 142 B
Civam 21 Deagher 11, HIZ4 Plnrch 31, 2030 FROP- 2031 1447 58 S0 AT
Gran 22 [recember (1, 2024 Mfarch 30, 06 EEQP- 2024 155352 3,440 dint -
Tatal 12,674,135 TH 030 1L
Weighted sy rensiming conteimal i of aptions owlstanling a0 el of yia 501 Venrs 601 Years

i) Fair vadue of opsons granted ©
The [air value & groot dale of opticns granled daing e vear ended March 31, 20035 vwese as given below:

Grani 21 (Time basel vesti) - T 660,12 jo T R52.49
Granl 22 (Panfommangs hased vesting) - T 65237

Thae T viles 58 gimait date of apions gramzd dunng the yeor ended Mercls 31, 2024 vweere as given helow:
Cirent 1% & 20 (Teme hesed vesnng) & 730501 in £ 73002

Far Girant 21, the far value 2 grant dale & delemimed using the Dlack-Scholes-Merton mudel. The muoded takes inte aocount the exercise price, the lesm of the oplicn, the share price o grand date and expecied price volmtilin of the
enderlying share, the expecied dividond vield and e ek les mterest rate e Uu e ol e aplion

Fan Civant 22, the: fiar vl 8 gt dane s detenmeed i he Black-Sehals-Memsi miedel and Mome-Coe Sinilancas isebindolag. The wsbel ks ik seeoun he exnise guive, tha term of the eption, the sheee prive a1

il bt aned espectad paice volesday of i undeslying shere, the expeced dividend vield, the risk free imerest moe for the renm ol the egaca and proahilig of seesfung aaeket Tnked condition o shane prise,

Thi mmacke] inpuits Lo apilion il duing e year cabal Misds 31, 2025 inchitad:

ah optices are granted al 2 prive of 1% disapml o e volume weighivd aveage picg ol bed 3 oonde mmaliatady poeceediss wanking dey of e date of zrant of oplione and vesl upon complelion of service [o7 a perind
1-5 vears, (Tace vl asd vest opon complilion oF seooes B peoidel 1=5 vens b ened apiong des eserasalds ull Mach 31, 2050

B gt 2 -exercise gice. T BH7.52 & Quanl 22-esenss price. T VT 53R (Mumeh 31, 3004 exdriass piee T3]

ch grent dates Ciranl 21 Ociober 08, 2024 & Grant 22: December (4, 2024 (March 31, 2024: July 5], 2023y

) gmpiny date March 39 5030 {March 31, 2034 March 31, 20315

e} expecied price volalility of the compam’s shares: J032% to MU0 (March 31, 20240 50.06%)

Ty evpectad dividend yuald: 1% (March 21, 2024 FH)

1) misk-Toew imterest estec 6,685 ko 6.73% (Moo 31, 2004; £.73% 10 6 R4

The expected price velatility is based om the histornc voladity (based o the remainis liGe of S oplivis), sdjusied Tor any expecied changes to fulure volatility dee 1o publichy availables infermatinn.

1) Expense agising froem sliae based paymeat ivansactin

Taited expenses ansng lmin share-based pammen iresactions recognised in prodil or boss as part of smployee benedil expense were as fallons:

Year endel Viear el

March 31, 2025 Marel 1, 2024

Fin Lakhi) (% i 1akiz)

b i anptiinn il 21,364 114028

FAANIR

Tutal enspluyes shar lased gyt eupens: [eefee ante 1G]




PE Fintech Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Note 27: Earnings per share (EPS)

Parliculars

a) Basic carnings per share

Profit attributable to cquity sharcholders (2 Lakhs) M
Weialted average munber of cquity shares used as the dencaninator in calculating basic camings por I
share [reler nole | below]

Weighted average number of equity shares and potential eguity shares used as the denominator in -

calculating diluted carnings per share |refer mote 2 below]

Basic carnings per share (in T) AT
Diluted earnings per share (in 3) A

MNote I: Number of equity shares outstanding during the year used for computing earnings per
share

Mumbier of sguity shares owlstanding al the end of the year
Less @ Equity sharcs held by ESOT trust as treasury shares (refor note 3 below)

MNumber of coquity shares ontstanding at the end of year used for computing carnings per share

Weighted number of equity shares used for computing bazic earnings per share

MNote 2: Weighted number of equity shares used for computing diluted earnings per share:
Weighted numhber of eguily shares wsed for computing basic earnings per share
Add: Weighted sverage number of potentinl equity shares on account of employee stock oplions

Weighted average number of cquity shares used as the denominator in calonlating basie/diluted
earnings per share

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Yoear ended
March 31, 2024

35,301
454,265 198

461,562,431

[N
.65

459,257,282
(1,288.306)

457,968,976

454,265,798

454,265 798

7206633

461,562,431

5,698
447,063,126

461,863,779

1.50
143

451,205,464
(2,641,258

448,562,206

447,063,126

447,063,126

14,800,655

461,863,779

Mate 3: Treasury sharcs arc excluded from weighted-average numbers of Eguity Shares used as a denominatar in the calenlation of basic and dilutcd EI*S.
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PR Fintech Limited

Motes (o e consolidated linancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(b)) Transactions wilh related parties

(¥ in Lakls)

_ Associales Key Management Personnel (KMP) |
5 Noo | Parliculars Year ended Yeur ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 Murch 31, 2024 March 31, 2025)  March 31, 2024
Transactions
| Muedical teleservices received from assoviate company
Wit Health Private Limited - 9 - -
2 Buslness pramation services received from associate company
WVigit Health Private Limited 10
3 Sale of leads to associale company
YEMP Markeing Management LLC 3.030 293 - -
4 Amaunt reimbursed to associate company for other expenses
YEMP Markeing Management 1.1.0 299 205 -
5 Renmmeration (Greoss of Tax)
Mr. Yashish Dahiya®* - 7,712 12,406
Mr. Mandeep Mehta - - 425 St
Mr Alok Ranszal - - 3,334 5,343
M. Sabvir Singh** 1,586 2,090
COthers {Independent Direclors) #+# - - 266 1849
{c) Melated parties balances as at year end
{F in Lakhs)
H.No Particulars As at As oat A at Ay at
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025]  March 31, 2024
1 Trade Payables [refer note 11(a)]
WVisit Health Private Limited - L0 - -
YHEMP Markeing Manogement LLC 11 133 - -
2 Trade veceivables [refer note 6(d)]
2 na

YEMI Markcing, Management 1.1.C

Wode 12 Transactions amount with related partics are cxclusive of applicable taxes.
Note 20 All related party transactions entered during the year were in ardinary course ol the busimess and are on wrm length basis. All oulstanding recervable balances are

ungecured and repayalle in cash

*includes ¥ 297 (March 31, 2024: T 270 Lakhs) lakhs remuneration paid to Mr. Yashish dahiva from PR Finteeh FZ2LLC (wholly oemed subsidiary of the Campany)
=0r, Sarbwir Singl is 1aking remuneration from Policybazaar Insurance Rrokers Private Limited (whelly awned subsidiary of the Company).
=4 qneludes remunesation of 24 Lakls (March 31, 2024 F 13 Lakhs) paid from Paisabazaar Marketing and Consulling Private Limited and ¥ 7 Lakhs (March 31, 2024 -
T 7 Lakhs) paid from Policybusaar Insurance Brokers Privite Limted, wholly ovned subsidiaries of the Company.

(d) Key managemen! persommel compensation

Year ended
March 31, 2025
(T in Lakhs)

Yenr ended
March 31, 2024
(T in Lakhs)

Short-term emploves benelis® 1,130 962
Post-cmployment henelils 2 4
Other Tong-term cmployee benclits 4] 2
Employee sharc based pavments e 12,195 19,654
Total compensation 13,323 20622

* including silting fees and remuneration o independent dircetors of the Company




11 Findesh Limited
Mutes b the consolidated loancisl statements Tor the vear ended Mavel 31, 2025

Mute 502 Sepinent Reporling

The Groap 15 primanly engaged m the business of msuranse broking and provicing onlme marketing, consulimg amd support services throagh s enhine
poartal policybazaar.com, policybazaarae, policybazaarsurance.ac and paisabazaarcom largely for the financial services industry. The Group cams is
reveme aaponly within india only.

Operating sepments are reported 0 manmer consistent with the miemal repostmg provided to the Chiel Operating: Decisien Maker (OO0 Al
operating segments’ results are revicowed regulacly by the Company's Chict’ Executnee OMticer and Chict Financial Officer, who have been identitied as
e OO, B0 asmesa the fnancial perfonnance and pesition of the Group and makes strategic decisions.

Bazed on noture of services rendered, the msk and reqemes, mtemal ompamazaton amd managemend stroctors, nafure of the regulatory emaronmem amed
the internal performancs reparting systems, the manogement considers that the Uroup is organized indo two reportable scpmicnts:

i) Insnramce broker services (repolsted sevvices): This Segment consisis ol insemee broker serviees poovided by the goonge in Indin: wlich e
remlated by the Insurance Bepulatory Development Autbarity {Insurances Ibrokers) Repplations, 2008 and Unnted Arab Lmirates ("LAE™) which are
repulated by Central Bank of the UAE (CBUAL) under the Besolution Mo, 15 of 20013 Conceming Insurance Brokerage Fegulations.

by Ciher sevvices: This Segmenl congsists of commigsion Gom Toancial prodeets aggregation seovice, onling makeling, consuliing md suppunl senviees
provided lirgely to the fmancial services imfusiry

Swmnary of the seguent nfermation is a5 follows:

(% in Lakhs}
5MNo  |Particulars March 31, 2025 Mlarch 31, 2024
1 [Sepment revemoe:
Insurance broker scrvices 420,708 275,026
Cither services G7.523 68,742
Total revenue 497,721 343,708
I |Scgment profit:
Frodil{es) before lnamce cost and fi
Insnramce broker servaces L] 15936
Oilier senvices (23.915) {13,579
Fall Profdil Before Gnonce cost and (ax 42,145 10,357
J  |Interest income
Insurance broker services 14,0374 B 47T
Oiher servces 6,532 27600
4 (Deprecimtion and aovriissation
In=urance broker scrvices 1321 5,750
Oither services 3,500 3122
3 [Income tax expense
hesmmce beoker services 2421 333
Cither services 1,025 EEY)
B [Semmenl Assels
Insurance broker scrvices 307,730 235,045
Orher services 445211 437,803
Total Assels T52,4%41 672,851
T |Segment linhilitics
lnsmance raker services T8 55,199
Chlber seivices 29970 30,005
Total Habilities 109,159 55,14
4 |Additions to non-current nssets
Insurance hroker services 20,6406 Bonl
Chilier s vices 3,638 1,767
Criler disclosures
O [Tnvestmentsi{divestment) in an pssociate
Insuramce hroker ssrvices - -
Ol senvices (3,045} 4544




P Findeeh Timiled

Mates Lo the consilidated financial statements for the year ended Mureh 31, 2005

Nate:-

| Sepment revenue is measored m the e way as o lle conzolidated statemeat of profit and boss. There are no inter-segment sales

2 Sepment profit 15 before finance cost amd mose G

1 Inberest meome includes interest income en bank deposits, corporate bambs mensmed al ansied eost, loan 1o ofleis, other financial assels

sl o e relmd,

4 Sezment assets includes fixed assets, wvestiments, irabe receables, cash and bank balances, other bank balanee, loans, other finimeial s
aiwd other assets and are measured in the same very s m the Gmaeial stalenses. These assels are allocated based on the operations of the

sepied of e aeseds. Titragroup reccivables and payables hive been ehminated

5 Momecurrend assets includes progerty, plae and equipment, Bight-of-use assets, and other mtangnble assets Thess non cunrent assels assets are
alloveted based on the operations of the segument. Intagroup sakes, puschases of property, plant, and equipment, and intingibke asseis lave heen

climinated, including their assomated profits ami beses

& The revenses of T 63,430 Lakls attrbutabls o the * nsmance beoker sarvices” scgment ase detived from two external customers (March 51,
24 - F 53 865 Lakhs attribatable to the "Insurance broker servces” sepment are desived fram twa extennal enstomers).

7 The revenwes of 2 17,511 Lakls ativilagalibe fo e "Otleer Services” segment are derived from two extemal costomers (Mearch 30, 2024 - 2

12,920 Lakhs attributable to the “other services" sepment e devived from two cxternal custoneers).

Summary of the sepment gengraplical information bascd on location of entities is s Tullows:

(% in Lakhs)
S.Mo |Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024
I [Segment revenue!
Tndia 472,611 WA Ddd
TIAE 25,110 B3
Total revenue 497,721 343,768
1 |Mon-current asscts
Il 41,534 32023
Linls 111 i

Mipliez-

I Scpment revenue is measured in the sime way as m e consalidsted statenen of profit and loss. Theee are no mier-seEment sales

Mon-current assets mcludes propenty, plad and cquipment, Right-of-use assets, and other mtongmble asseds, These non corrend assels asls ang
2 allocated based on the operations of the peoprsphical segineat. Dragroup sales, perchases of property, plant, amd equipmen, and miangihle

asscts have been climicated, including their assocmted profits and losses.
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Hales 1o the comsolidaled Tinancial siatemears for fhe vear ended March 31, 2035
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I'E Fintech Limited
Motes to the consalidated financial statensents oo ihe year ended Mareh 31, 2025

Mok 34z Donng the coment Tinancal yean, e neozstinenl m Myleancare Ventures Private Limited, & panly owned subsidéany, anicatiog 1o € 4 040 lakhs {(campaising *
1,553 lakhs of Goodwaill, £ 4,009 lakbes for nen assers, wod £ 1 581 lakhie of finssssal Gsdnlius mecsmed (o the loomer vaners of the acquired basiness), kas been impaired
ta the bt of the goodwill ol T 1,533 Lakhs generated from the business combizaiion. {refer snie 22)

Mage 5% Duwring the current financial year, the Decpsime Techoaloges Fowite L, o wholly owned sobsidiary, divested 299200 equity shores of the VHPL far £
7600 lekhs. Thas transaction resulted i=m a gain of T 5,431 lakhs. Docprime continue o retin asd hald 122083 equiy shares aperegatmg o 86685 on a fully diluted
basis As a result of thes divesamest, VHPL has ceasal 1e be an assocmie comgany and hax been reclassified 2s financizl investment, which shall he fir valsod 81 e
reparting date in accordance with Ind A5 109, accordingly the fair value gain of 2 2262 likda wll Gt of disestment of VITL has been credited to P&L through
cxepinial ilem, Fiar vabug gasool € 132 Lakhs Toe date of patial divestment (0 year end Bas been taken o P&L in sconrdance witl aption asailalile b e s
IND AS. {refier note 22}

Mt 36; | 12 e curvent Tinael v, Gy Docpome Technulogies Private Limdted, a whally pwned subsidinnye, diveszead conee {100%5) shachablieg constitaling
AS0M equity shares of ¥ 10 each and 2,754 Coapulsarily Coanvenible Prefermes Shacs *CCIET) of T 10 each of Visit Internet Services Private Limived (VISP
Fan ® 200 lakhs, Thes transaction resulted ima loss of T 2,035 Lakhs. (refer nose 22}

Mote 371 Business combliatisns
Acquisition during the year ended March 51, 20252

(a) Sumennry of acquisition
During the year ended March 31, 2025, Teall Suppost Services Private Limived, o whedly awnet sstiduey ol e Company, acquired 100% shams of Genesis Group
Linsited, whech alds daeeily 495 and sty theough 2 neennee sleavhulder 51% of Pulicybamar Middie Gast Inswmnce Brokers L1 (Eesiwlile, Gencsis s
Drukers LLC} thereby making Genesis Group Limited and Palicvbazazs Middée Fast Inssmnes Brakars 1L (Frstwhale, Genesis [esurance Drokers LLC} subsidaries of
thae Uiy (et nale 3R) Thes avqusien = g parl of Grovp stestegic svestments, that will allow the Group o expand edferings of UAE praducts o UAE Qased
Cuslomers.
Dednils of ihe purchase consideration, the net nssets acquived nnd gondwill are as fallaws:
[} Porchase consideration

1% in Lakhs)
Poficybaxaar Middle East

Particolars 5
f Insurance Brokers LLAC
Cash pand an3
Tudal purchase cunsideraiion an3

{ii) The azeeds and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition are ns follows:

= [ in Lakhy)
e Paolicyhazany Middie: East
Bigmrance Brukers LLT
Agsrly
Prapeny, Plant & Fgsipuicn 35
Moo currect edher finascial assets (epesi with the ministry of eoseany, LIAK) aE2
Trede receivahles 1,304
Cash and cash equivalents 3405
Diker cumenl assels AR
Liabilities
Tisale: pryalabiz [4,602)
Chiber Ciarvean Lishilstics {105y
Frosisions {4
Met identifinkle assets nequived T65
fiif} Coleulation af Gaadwill
(% im Lakhs)

Pelicybaznar Middle Ease

Farticulnrs

lictiiraiee: Brakers 110
I‘.‘mo:idcrzr.inu el e EaT Tre]
Lezs: Mt identifinhle assets acquired . 5| [?ﬁj}
Caadwill 138

The: gnndwill is pirdbatehle to the vabue of expeened ayacipees ansing fom e soquetsan. Bowill zol be deductible for ax purposes

Sgmificam Jrdgeman

i) Acquived recelvahles

The fair valee of acquired eade receivables is @ 1,304 Lakhs with respest i Policydamm Middle East Insuranve Brokers LLC. The gross condraciual ameoant for frade

mugeivalles due s T 130 Lakhs wilh a luss allovamce of T Mil.

(id} Kevenue and profic costribation

IF e acqusition had mkea plece il beginsing af ahi year, s would bz bees higher by T 1,533 Lakhs and the profil befiore tax of the Groug would ave been
higher by T 2% Lakhs. From the date of acquisition, FMolicvbazaar Middle Best Insurasce Brokers 1100 bas comtrilutad @ 16,851 Lakhs ol seenue® and T 747 Lakhs of

pealn® wihe pralia heliee e of the Grsup

" Gross ol imler-vompsamy eliminalicrs
There were whacquisiicss in the year ended March 31, 2024

{h) Purchase conslderating - cash nndfows{indloow)

(% im Lakhs})

Particulars

Pralicybaveaar Mliddle East
Tmsurance Brakers LLC

‘Datflovw of cnsh o acquire subsidiaries, net of cash aoquired

Cash considersdion ETie]
Lezs: Cash and other bank kalances scquared J, 405
Net cash {inflew) un acymisilizn §2,502)

Mot Jeall has ol mouered any acyuisilion relaled costs with respect 1o ahove




PR Fintech i
Fulvs be 1he cims
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Vvt Bimancial slatomerds fur the vear emlod March 55, 505

Mole 6=
Al Additiveal regelatary informition required by Schedule 11
(i1 Pictaily o Beenzami Froperty hikd

Mhwing e cumend fizancial year, no proceedings have been iitizied on ar are parding agaisst the Costpary for BoMu beagn prpaty unbar the Pansmi Trarssctions [Prohibition} Ao, 1958 (45 of 19885 2nd Rules made
thereiider. Bowever duning, the prevrsus Tmaeiel v, conpany ks reccived senann mido the Pabihition of Besami Progery T citors Acl, LAER Riag coran mlb on aboal the ¢ el e coimgaiv. The
eompzny ks duly liimighal all ik doqirenis and infoemation en. Frbary (6, 3004 Mo funher cormanication recenved frans the depasnoal suce s lest seln
[arther, a5 detailed in rote 23, duning die cumeet vear, procecdings Rave been mibowed agoeis! e Paialama Malding anl Cowaliing Frivake Limiked, 3 whally ouned subsidiary, snder the Denami TrazszetionsProbisition) Azl
BURE (e Bennme Aud}aned Balo nedd enanka

{13 Mareawinp Secured apist cur el dsees
Tha: growp has ne bermovrings Gom harks or fnzncial insiingions or ihe basis of seceriny of currenl ass21s dusi, e curven oF jugs s li

weinl i

i) Witha defaulier
Honrz o Uz cutitza in 1his grina Devs bescm dbaslanad willil difinitis by amy bark o Gl mstitslioe or povormment or any poverrment ihanity,

{iv'} Belitgsiship with strask afl ¢ompunics

=ruck ol under sectins 242 of the Companies Act, 2012 or section 300 al the Conpadics Act, 19%8 a5 ol ol Rl v odial Manch 212025 snd Seech 31,

ept bees o lualensces o

{1 Cumpliance with masber uf lavrs af campanics
The group has complied with the number of lavers prescribed urder tie Comganes Ao, 2011

ivill Camplisnce with sgeroved scheme(s) af arvaipeniens

The Canpary has in iis board mesting beld on Apeil 25, 2022 approved Amalgasizuon of Makssese Tedkadics Lmilal wilh e Company: porsssnl 6o socion 230 00 232 of fke Cormpames Act, 2003 read with @10 Companies
(Lsngnamisss, wrangoeonls unl suzilgetims) bz, 016, The Ansypenolion spplacation was Glod with Mational Swock Excharge of Iedia Liziied and Bomtar Snock Excharge Listed oo Bay 18, 2022 The Kationsl Sk
FExchange of India Limiled and BSE Limited issied no observadion lowers fo the Canpare on Parare B, 2003,

The Juinl Applicatiin heloes: the Hunsl: Mativa! Compoy L Tribimad {TToefle Tribinal), Chandigark Benck, under the provisiens of Secters 290 o 232 af tla: det wic Diked un May 93, 3323 A per ender dated Jaly 05, 707
passed by [lon'te Tribenal, mectings of Cquty Shzrebakiers ard Ussecured Usednors ol e Conpasy wee el an Seplonbo 82, 2003 o appros: e Scheme of Amalparation of Makesense Techaokgies Limited with the

Connpruny s el enmmesctal malla

Lz second malio joeil dpglicotan vwas Dikad el ool Taloael oo Seplontan 14 2003 anl $ie s i onker rocess

[RT TS M
There = ra ircome surverdered or dsclosed i in0one derug e Cuwneal o prevame yein st e L ssscssmants urskr e Income: Tas Act, 1941 that has mol ko rocorded i the boals of accoent

iviily Detalls of cramte currency o virlul cerreicy
The arcag bas nod iraded o irrested in crypbo carmency or virteal cormency derisg $ie curmend or peevious year.

{i} Valuativa ol prapeety plank anid cqnipment, intaingible asset anil imestment pregeriy
Ve reigs B o revalacd its progeay, plant el cqugpacn dinchalisg sighl-cl- il

i) e anncts er bath during the ment ur provious year.

{xp The Greug de nal kold 2y immevable property (other than gropenties wiese the Conpany 15 S lesses md e Ries gpooments s duly caccetisd in Groer of the lessee)

{xi} The: Groogp hax not aranked azy loars or advances in the nziume of keans 1o promelers, direcioes, KBIPs and the relaied panics (25 Scfinsd usder Conmpames Ao 2003, cither sevzsdly o juisily with amy: ofber peron which am
repayabde an demard or widoul specafiang sy teras of pepa el xept an stoted below

Parlicrkary

Cursinedling amiest 45
al Mareh 31, 2015

Terecntage Do the duli)
loras oed advances i the
o berss il lesany

Chatstinding ssmann] s
it March 51, 2024

i) Amzamls repayahle on demand

- Pindioias

- Kooy maragerial persorns|

L'ercentage to the total
Igi il sy seseds in il
nature of lops

- Ober related partiss

Posabartor Maik

walliigg, Fren el Lanived owleally oo subsidiany vornmpamy )

(ir “:id'm:i-:;po:'i'ﬁ'im_aru' ierms or persad al regayraem
- Trometers

-Dimciore

- Kev managerial persone]

- Diber reloaded parties

Todal

4800

L]

[} The Ceanpeiy hus sl arkanzel ur hraneed o isvestod firals s oy sidher peramsh e ontig{ies), iscding foncizn miitics (e

3 veith tho urderstandi

Ix} directhy or indirectly lend or imvest in ofker persores or endties idenafied in any manner whaiseever by ar o baball of tie gooup WEanane el i) u

[ie] provade ey guariles, secunty of Ues Ihe 1o or o leball o the ellnnale lesdio e

that ihe Internaediary shall:

[xiii} The Company has sl raasivel ary fimd feom any porson{e) or enfity(izs), izchidng foeeign entities (Fanding Pany) with the mdersianding (whiether recosded in wiling o olliowise] thet e Cimpuny el
i) directly or indirecily lend or invest in ofier persons o enfines idzrofied in ary maneer whatsoever by or oo eboll ol e Fadig Paty {(Ullinaie Beaficiricna

i) provinks gy grinnnle, o iy i e e ol e ullines: bl

I} MMschagare ol Inerearpaiae leans 45 pev Section THE (4) of Coonpaniics Act, IRLE il Repulation 34 (3} ceal with Paci & ol Schedle ¥ al ile SERT {Liding Qbligatians and Disclasure Hegquiremcass) Bepalatisis,

mis:
A% in Lakhsy
. Mogimaim haluce Afavinmm balaner
Bate aff Securcill Amsiml iatstamding ay 4 Amaunt ostanding ns 3 2
MName af campany Due ake Parpaze al Losn autstitding during the wutslanding during 1he)
(] 1 ] I il Mwrch 31, 2058 i March 30, 724
o > resl nserured wrch 31, vear 034-35 al Marc T
F EE
Torabesl Heatthease Frivte Lisiied ! r:;m""n ":‘T“:'"E ‘ﬂ-
[kem giver by Peaprime ; ? s
- e 5k 1T% 4 e Hisgcaned I bzl ol 2.0 = T
Techoelics Privoss Limitnd Ca liss .f.:.l:i:ﬂ:.r [reec i * n . ol e £ LMy
whiadly cosed subsidian "] bt N e
; il days. it i,




FL Fintech Limiled

Males b fhe © linlaateedl Gnasicial st s Tor dhe vear endeal hlarch 31 2925

Mate 34 & Uellisativs of the TRCF praceeds:

The Codipagy, i the Fromcisd vize aidal Masch 31, 222, complete the: Initial Bublic Offering (P00 of 38,162,397 equity slom of fact valee of € 2 each for cash al » privs: of ¥ 980 por ety share aggregaiing o ¥ 70071 lakhe
coreprisine s fosh issee of 18,265,106 couity shones mapmcpting 5 2 503,000 [akbs md en offz G sabe of 19.9599,091 equity shars azgrozaing do T 195,071 lebhs. Pursuin: i the 1P, the ooy sheecs af tle: Ueingany got listed o
Maticaal Stock Fxchars (HSE} aed Basbay Ssock Cxchonge (ASER un Meveniber 13, 2001, Cut of the prococds of affer Ton sale, & 174,181 lakhs {net of selling shoocholi sl ol IPL seloeed espenscs ared appiEabils ) wes
remmabinal ks sellig, sharehodders

The: utilisation of die net IR procceds i susasised o below:
{8 in bkl

Dejrets of the olfic Criginel ament {us pee Reisal Amopt wilised upia | Unolilfed dinaui i at
il decusieznt] Amuani Bz ch 31, 2025 Wigrch 31, 10254
Enbarcing vishility ard awaseness of gor bronds, inchiding bt w biiizd v Palicyhaeaar” and “Puictho g™ | 31, H U500 PELESL -
pecwr epgortmilics 1o meponl areatl ailianves w inzrease cor Consime e usthadag allling preseace®* 7500 WAL 37,500 033
Fusditg siralegic el aid squsiienz* 3 woann A2EE 7,683 EIETE
Expanding mmr puisizace ostside India*® . N 70 LERD ] A 1
Cherazd cinpronle parposes” 2 T, Dl T, B0 -
| Tontal il 0 361,264 BRI LI EL]

* O dinalizatinn of oo wspeses, the ansunt proposed s b ulilizal e Lienzral Corpocate pamposcs war revisod in € 26,354 lablis a5 canpaned 10 angiral aront of 025 305 lehbs.

alives 5o Increase cur consrmer hase: melodiu, clfliae preseace,”
veslments sd acqaisilions,” raducing s alkcation feom BE0 D1

4 Muring e year, e Conpany realloeated snstilived 1L groceeds zgppegating o T4 352 lakks un il B0 affer chject Mew Opporiuritics 0 Fxpinl Geath
Theveby mcreasine ity sifucsn fros 257,500 [akbs tn 739,252 Likhe. This seallocation conprised 717,357 btk warsfzicd oo dhe alfer ebject Turdirg shaieai
Takie ter 842,644 lakhs, and T35 000 Ealles lavsleed hom * Lspanding o presence cosals i, reduciag us allocation from T17,500 Lakhe i TIES00 lakle,

2 Thae wrsatilized amaenl of nel TP pussceds s et Flarch 21, 2025 andl s o6 Murch 31, 2024 wese invested in fixed fepoeits and ciber hank secosuts maniziesd wiih schednfod commercial Tanks

Pt 48 = The hosarance Begulaiony aed Tevdpencel Autbanty of ledia (TRDAT bad curicd nst vpulis ispocsars ot Pelicytarsar anmscs Brobos Privabe Linated {the *Whally gomed sibsidian ™ w "Polisbieas™ v examae
capliznae with wehevmt lins ard regulations for variors finencisl yoars s ssusd it repans, requesting fie roqeemas: e e elieralioss sieed dierzin Polioazor sibmned i wegpoiss o Ge ERDAT subsrquent o which RTIAL

innrned b o nostioes and 3 Ieller ol sluics: in sespoct ol the abave inspection ropeii s imftes gerldinig b mainaiing specific docimentalins, asiois wd processes, daclosines md limely Gling i feums.

Puliybazace has dalye pul in pliase fhe aezessary systems and processes and aclin tben repon for closure af the sheervatings s tn e sumsied 10 dhe ILVAL Further Polizpheoss bl st w dbide by s guidelinesfrarelaicm:
rnied y tlse THLVAL Erass firce o fme. & permsal beering was scheduled by IRTRAR for Fobricmy 11, 2025, aad was wneaded by Policyharasr, Fariber spdite o ovansd

Funthher, dei hag ke year erded Man 30, B123, IRLWAS hes carried guf msperlions G fnrsool yees cided Masch 31, 200% and Meech 31, 20024 and lui ssusd ils repon thereon. Palicvhesasr salusitial it sespoise oo LRDAL va a klier
dared Frhmiary 13, 2025, gid anaits further upsike from EREVAL I the assessment of th manapene, suppetol by kol advice, the sbave masers are red lildy b bine o nateral pact en ke comgiing eperor ol Fula bieeaer as
well 25 1hese corenlifaicd fnacial Sl

HNote 11
b Dhuring the vear endod March 31, 2025, Poboybazaar Irsurance Frvkers Prive Lanited 4o “whally comed sshsidisny Compam” buncinelier seferred 1o 25 “Talicvbarane™, eoesived shiu cauwse iatice wider section HES o ihe
Income 1s Act, TUGE, Gor ihe reapenieg of 2 1 prissedduige: foc the assesmenl vears 01920 aued 2021-22, based on information related o frameacting with eeen cusmaneers. Palicybazanr hos duly Tenedicd Bie ceqaisile deiails

end indoerearon wilk Tha mgrone 1ax SEAMmMERL

6] Dariag ihe vear erdel Mok 31, 2023, Compasy received show cars: natic: s soctan LIEA of the bacome o Act, 1961, fin the coogening of assessmon] procoedings B the wocneid year 2013 20, based gn informalim
relateal fo hrias eetion Wi certin customers. The Cranpuoy s fuerished the roquisie detsl sod infoometod witl e moome j2x deparmen

Ged Duiigg thee wear erded Weech 31, 2023, Ducinanm Genzral of GET Inscllipmes: (I, Gangrem, Harszna vizilol (h: promisecs of Polaobocain lnsaranoe Erokers Frivai: Limilal s whally auwad sebisidary of 1he Cormparn: and
cordintied w scaweh and enquired abor ils corin ek The Usipany has forrihed the moasenn infosaios i requived by the DGGL

Fewsional ad 15075 Lo pratet fis mierests arsl Bes leen dveod B it has strong begal positions apined sbave metlces. 0 s et practizahle for the Couep e calima: e wiigs ol cash edloves il

M The Circup engages repiked |




PR Fintech Limited
Mates to the consolidated Nuancial statements for the vear ended Maech 31, 2025

Mate 42 @ T'ransfer pricing

The Company has established a comprehensive svstem of maintenance of information and decuments as required by fhe transfor pricing legislation under seclions 92421
of the Income Tax Act, 1961, For this purpose, the Company has appointed an independent consultant for conducting o Transfer Pricing study {the “study™) for the
Assessment Yeur 2025-26. ln the unlikely event thal any adjustment is required consequent to completion of e study for the vear ended March 31, 2025, the same would
he made in the subsequent year, However, management is of the opinion that its interational ransactions are gt arm's length so that the aforcsaid legislation will nol have
ny impiect on the financisl statements, perticulary on the amount of e expense and that of provizion for taxalion.

Maote 43 @ Events aceurring after the reporting perind
a) Further, subsequent fo the year ended March 31, 2025, Company bas invested € 53,940 Lakhs i PR Healthcare Sorvices Private Limited (PR [Healthcare™), in
accordance with the shareholder's approval abtemest through postal kallot. Following thiz investment, along with investments from other external investors and the ereation

of an Emploves Stock Option Plan (ESC) pool, the Company's shineholding in PI3 Healtheare was diluted to 40 323 Consequenily, PE Lealthcare has ceased o be a
subsidiary of the Conpany

b} These Gnanciel statements were approved and adopted by Board of Dircctors of the Company in fheir meeting held on May 13, 2025,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on hehalf of the Board of Diveclors
Clautered Accountants
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